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Sical Tron Ore Terminals Limited

Balance sheet
Rs. in lakhs
As at Asat As at
Particulars Note 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2 2290 25,77 3185
Capital work-in-progress 2 72,95759 63,277.67 55,936.42
Financial Assets 3
- Other non-current financial assets 3.1 7348 59.32 52.51
Other non-current assets 32 1,737.53 1,271.37 1,258.66
74.791.30 64,634.13 57,279 44
Current assels
Inventories 4 75161 75161 75161
Financial Assets 5
- Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 369 0.75 2,40
Current Tax Assers (Met) 6 282 31 446
Other current assets 7 68.64 5822 76.18
826.76 813,69 83465
Total Asscts 75,618.26 65,447.82 58,114.09
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 2 13.000.00 13,000.00 13,000,00
Other Equity gl 18039 174,93 98.32
13,180.3% 13,174.93 13,09832
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities 9
- Borrowings 21 - 4.802.25 18,237.44
Provisions 10 22.56 22.00 20.43
2256 487475 18,257.87
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities 11
- Trade payables 11.1 270939 3,142.08 3.045.69
- Other financial liablities 11.2 = 544.93 242882
Other current Liabilitics 12 59,705.66 43,761.36 21,283.13
Provisions 13 0.26 0.30 .26
62,415.31 47,448 64 16,757.50
Total Equity and Liabilities 75.618.26 65,447.82 58,114.09
Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the accounts 2023
The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached
for CNGSN & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Firm registration number | 00492155
LLP No : 5200036
CN GANGADARAN Capt. K. N. Ramesh Sumith R Kamath
Partner Managing Director Director
Membership Mo, 11203
Chennai T. Subramanian P. Ramachandran
Date: 8 May 2017 Chief Financial Officer Campany Secreiary
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Drate: @ May 2017



Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Particulars Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Changes in
- Current/Non eurrent financial assets
- Current/Non current ussets
- Inventories
= Current/Non current financial lisbilities
- Current/Mon current liabilities
- Trade payables
- Provisions
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Cash generated from operations |A]

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets (Including Capital Work in Progress)
Net cash generated vsed in investing activities [B]

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long lerm borrowings

Proceeds from Holding Company

Net cash generated from financing activities [C]

Increase in cash and eash equivalents [A+B+C)
Cash and eash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents 5
Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

Total cash and cash equivalents

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the accounts

As per aur report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number . 0049158
LLP Mo : 5200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner
Membership Mo, 11205

Chennai
Date: § May 2017

s in lakhs
For the vear ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
(14.16) (6.81)
(476.58) 5.25
- (221.79)
(3.75) 61.56
(432 66) 96.36
0.52 1.61
(926.63) (63.82)
(926.63) (63.82)
(9,671.30) (7.257.21)
(9.671.30) (7.257.21)
(5,347.18) (15,097 29)
15,948 05 22416.67
10,600.87 731933
294 (1.65)
0.75 2,40
3.69 0.75
022 0.14
347 .61
3.69 0.75
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for and on behulf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited

Capt. K. N. Ramesh
Managing Director

T. Subramanian
Chief Finaneial Officer
Chennai

Date. 9 May 2017

Sumith R Kamath
Direciar

P. Ramachandran
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Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the yvear ended 31 March 2017

1
1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

Company overview and Significant Accounting Policies
Company overview

Sical Iron ore Terminals Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on 5 September 2006, The Company has entered into a Build Operate Transfer
(*BOT™) License Agreement with the Kamarajar Port Limited (“KPL") (erstwhile Ennore Port Limited) for 30 years with effect from 6 February 2008 for
construction, development and operation and maintenance of an iron ore terminal. The Company has set up its Iron Ore Terminal Facility (“the Terminal”)
at Kamarajar Port Limited and could not commence its commercial operations due to the prevailing ban on the export of iron are, The Company had made
constant requests to the KPL and Ministry of Shipping to allow handling of alternate cargoes such as coal in the terminal. Subsequently, the Company has
signed a License Agreement with KPL on 11 July 2016 for a period of 27 years to convert the existing Iron Ore Terminal Facility into a Coal Handling
Facility and handle coal at that terminal, Since the commercial operations of the Company is yel to start, the Company does not have Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors on 9 May 2017,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act') (to the extent notified). The Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

These financial statements are the company's first Ind AS financial statements. The company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoptions were
carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting
Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Sec133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which
was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 1.19.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
B Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

B Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

P Cash or cash equivalent unless resiricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are clagsified as non-current.

A liability is current when!

B It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

B It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period The Company classifies All
other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating eyele.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions lo accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policics that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following
notes:

(i) Income taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be paid or recovered
in connection with uncertain tax positions. Also refer to Note 1,16,



Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

(1t} Property, plant and equipment; Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the company. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The useful hives and residual values of company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including at each financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assels as well as anticipation of future events, which may
impact their life, such as changes in technology.

(itt) Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period,
Specifically. the Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns, customer concentrations,
customer credit-worthiness and current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be required.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs arc expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds,

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, Cost
includes expenditures directly attributable Lo the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation: The Company depreciales property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line basis from the datc the assets are
ready for intended use, Assets acquired under finance lease and leasehold improvements are amortized over the lower of estimated useful life and lease
term. The estimated useful lives of assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Asset Class Dep Rate Method Uneful Tiife

(Years)
Furniture & Fixlures 10%  SLM 10
Office Equipments 20%  SLM 5
EDP Equipments 33.133% SIM 3
Plant & Machinery 20% SLM 3

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed al each reporting date.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, Repairs and maintenance costs are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements
upon sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition/construction of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost of property, plant
and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress. The Company has taken all the direct costs
incurred on acquisition of assets including the interest cost, the depreciation on assets acquired during the construction phase and all other administration
expenses incurred towards the acquisition/construction of property, plant and equipment to Capital Worl-in-Progress.

Functional and presentation currency

Hems included in the financial statements are measured using the curréncy of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.c. the
“functional currency™). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the
Company.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting
date of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and reported within foreign
exchange gains/ (losses).

Non-monelary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost arc translated at the exchange rate prevalent on the
date of transaction.



Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.9

1.10

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value, Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets. Loans and borrowings and payable are
recognised net of directly attributable transactions costs.

(1) Financial assets at amortised cost: A financial agset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (SPPI).

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months afier the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets,
Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and
cligible current and non-current assets,

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any time withoul prior notice
or penalty on the principal.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and in fixed deposits with a original maturity period
of 1gss than 12 months from balance sheet date are considered as a part of the Company’s cash management sysatem.

(i) Financial llabilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
B In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

B In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generale economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobgervable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or diselosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hicrarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level put that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

b Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts such as interest rate swaps and currency swaps to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges,
Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.



Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.11

1.12

Impairment

(1) Financial assels: In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss, The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used o provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL
is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount
is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as an allowance, 1.e. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b) Non-financial assets: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non
financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss,

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the recoverable, Losses are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through statement of profit and loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets
(the “cash-generating unit™).

Employee Benefit

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined
benefit plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the Company's only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for
defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when the employee provides service, Under a defined benefit plan, it is the
Company’s obligation to provide agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company. The present value of
the defined benefit obligations is caleulated using the projected unit credit method.

The Company has the following employee benefit plans:

fa) Gratuity: In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement
or termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. The gratity fund is managed hy the Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets.
Instead net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined
benefit liability or assct. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined
liability or assel through other comprehensive income.

Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,



Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.13

1.14

1.16

(b) Compensated absences: The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of the
unutilised accumulating compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment, The Company
records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Company
measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that
has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Company recognizes accumulated compensated absences based on actuarial valuation, Non-
accumulating compensated absences are recognized in the period in which the absences occur. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an
asset, if'it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of raw materials includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost 15
determined on first in, first out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Finance income and expense

Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss, using the
effective interest method,

Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Rorrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss using the
effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profil and loss except to the extent it relates Lo items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(a) Current income fax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities based on the taxable income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compule the current tax amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
liability simultaneously.

(b) Deferred income tax; Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of asscts and labilitics and their carrying amount in financial statements,
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the lime of the transactlion,

Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
seltled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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1.17

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period. unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule I11, unless
otherwise stated.

First- time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

The Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS's notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, The adoption of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, using 1 April
20135 as the transition date. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are effective for the first Ind AS Financial Statements for
the vear ended 31 March 2017, be applied consistently and retrospectively for all fiscal vears presented.

All applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively wherever required. The resulting difference between the carrying amounts of the
assels and liabilities in the financial statements under both Ind AS and Indian GAAP as of the Transition Date have been recognized directly in equity al
the Transition Date.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has availed itself of certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101 as cxplained
below:

(a) Exceptions from full retrospective application:

A. Estimates exception; Upon an assessment of the estimates made under previous GAAP, the management is of the opinion that there was no need to
revise such estimates under Ind AS, except where estimates were required by Ind AS's and not required by previous GAAP,

(b) Reconciliations:

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arising from the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS in
accordance with Ind AS 101:

- equityas at 1 April 2015,

- equity as at 31 March 2016;

- total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016; and
- explanation of material adjustments to cash flow statements,
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Reconciliation of equity

fis, In lakhs
As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015
Particulars Previous Lﬂ:en_:t o Previous Effm::l:. of
GAAP transition to  Ind AS GAAP transition Ind AS
Ind AS to Ind AS

Assets

Non-current assets

Property Plant and Equipment 25717 - 2577 31.85 E 3185
Capital work-in-progress 63,097 48 180,19  63,277.67 55,834.20 102.22 55,936.42
Financial Azsets

- Other non current financial assets 59.32 - 5932 52.51 - 52.51
Other non-current assels 1,271.37 - 1,271.37 1,238.66 - 1,258.66
Current assets

Inventories 751.61 - 751.61 751.61 - 751.61
Financial Assets

- Cash and cash equivalents 0.75 - 0.75 2.40 - 2.40
Current Tax Assets (Net) 311 = 311 446 - 4.46
Other current assets 58,22 - 5822 76,18 - 76,18
Total assets 65,2G7.63 180.19  65,447.82 58.011.87 102.22 58,114.09
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity Share capital 13,000.00 - 13,000.00 13.000.00 - 13,000.00
Other equity (5.26) 180.19 174.93 (3.90) 102.22 98.32
Total equity 12,994.74 180.19  13,174.93 12,996.10 102.22 13,098.32
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Finanecial Liabilities

- Borrowings 4,802.25 . 480225 18.237.44 . 18,237.44
Provisions 22.00 - 22.00 20.43 - 20.43
Current Habilities

Finaneial Liabilities

- Trade payables 3,142,058 - 3,142.05 3,045.69 - 3,045.69

- Other financial labilities 544,93 - 544.93 2,428.82 - 2,428.82
Other current liabilities 43,761.36 x 43,761.36 21,283.13 5 21,283.13
Provisions 0.30 - 0.30 0.26 - 0.26

Total Equity and Liabilities

65,267.63 180.19  65,447.82 58,011.87 102.22 58,114.09




Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts
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Equity reconciliation:

Kz, in lakhs
Particulars Note As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015
Equity under Previous GAAP: 96.96 (3.90)
IND AS transition adjustments:
Interest expense on Corporate Guarantee i 77.97 102.22
Total 174.93 98.32

Explanations for reconciliation Equity:
(i) Under Ind AS, interest expense has been recognised on the Corporate Guarantee issued by Holding Company,

The Company does not have Statement of Profit and Loss as the Company has not commenced the commertial operations,

Cash flow statement:
There were no significant reconciliation ilems between cash flows prepared under Indian GAAP and those prepared under Ind AS.
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Sical lron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts

PART 1- BALANCE SHEET

3 Financial Assets Rs. inlakhs
" As at Asat Asat
3.1 Oth tfi I i
o R T e P 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured, conxidered good
Security deposits 73.48 59.32 5251
73.48 59.32 52.51
Hs. i lakhs
As at As at As at

3.2 Other non-current assets

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Unsecured, considered good

Balances with Service Tax Authorities 1,737.53 1.271.37 1,258.60
1,737.53 1,271.37 1,258.66
4 Current assets
Rs. in lakhs
4.1 Inventories As at Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Stores and spares 751.61 751.61 751.61
751.61 751.61 751.61
5 Financial Assets
Rs. in lakhs
Asat Asat As at

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2016

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)

- in current accounts 347 0.61 234
Cash on hand 0.22 0.14 0.06
3.69 0.75 2.40
Rs, in lakhs
i - As at As at As at
6 Current Tax Assets (Net 3
o3 (Ne 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Advanee meome lax, net of provision for tax 2.82 3.11 4.46
2.82 3.11 4.46
Rs. in lakhs
As at As at As at

7 COither current assets

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Unsecured, considered good
Other advances

- prepaid expenses 34.41 2359 41.93
- advances for supply of goods and rendering of services 34.23 34.23 34.25
68.64 58.22 76.18




Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Nates to the accounts

PART 1 - BALANCE SHEET

8 Share capital
Authorised i Su?)scrlhed e
Paid-up
Particul
SEha Number of | Face | Total value Number of Total value
share value | (Rs. In Lakhs) share (Rs. In Lakhs)
Previous Year 2015-16
Equity Shares 10
Opening balance as on 1 Apr 2015 13,00,00,000 13,000 | 13,00,00,000 13,000
[ncrease during the vear - -
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2016 13,00,00,000 13,000 | 13,00,00,000 13,000
Current Year 2016-17
Equity Sharez 10
Opening balance as on | Apr 2016 13,00,00,000 13,000 13,00,00,000 13,000
Increase during the year = 5
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2017 13,00,00,000 13,000 | 13,00,00,000 13,000
8.1  The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to cach class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the
repayment of capital:
The Cormpany has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each sharcholder is cligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except
in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts if any, in proportion to their shareholding.
8.2  Shares of the company held by holding company:
Particulars Equity shares with voting rights
Number of shares
Asat 31 March 2017
Sical Logistics Limited 8.19.00.000
Asat 31 March 2016;
Sical Logistics Limited 5.19.00,000
8.3  Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
Class of shares / Name of sharcholder As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Number of % holding Number of Yo
shares held shares held holding
Equity shares with voting rights
Sical Logistics Limited §.19,00,000 63.00% 8,19,00,000 | 63.00%
MMTC Limited 3,38,00.000 26.00% 3,38,00,000 | 26.00%
L&T Infrastructure Development Projects Limited 1,43,00,000 11.00% 1,43.00,000 11.00%
84 The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period
of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date nor has 1ssued shares for consideration other than cash,
8.5  There are no shares for which calls remain unpaid.




Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Statement of changes in equity

8.1

Other Equity

Rs. in lakhs

Other reserves Onher thema of Equity attributable

: Retained Other

Particulars N ; to owners of the
Corporate Guarntee earnings Comprehensive
l:umpnny

Reserve Income
Balance ag at 1 April 2015 - {3.90) - (3.90)
Restated bulance at the beginning of the reporting period 102.22 - 102.22
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - {1.36) - (1.36)
Corporate guarntee interest (refer note below) 77.97 - - 77.97
Balance as on 31 March 2016 180.19 (5.26) - 174.93
Balance as at | April 2016 180.19 (5.26) - 174.93
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (1.04) (1.04)
Corporate guarntee interest (refer note balow) 6.50 i 6.50
Balance as on 31 March 2017 186.69 (6.30) - 180.39

Note: As per Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the corporate guamntee given by the holding company to the banks in respect of the loans availed by
the Company qualifics as a 'financial guarantee contract. No payment is mdae by the Company to its holding company and this is considered as a
deemed capital contribution by the holding company, since the guarantee has been provided by the holding company in its capacity as & shareholder.



Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts

PART I - BALANCE SHEET

Non-current liabilities

9.1

10

Rs. inn lakhs

As at As at As at

Financial Liabilities 31 March2017 31 March2016 1 April 2015

Borrowings
Secured
Term loans

from banks

- Yes Bank (refer note i) - 4 80225 534718

- United Bank of India (refer note 1) - - 4,233.91

- UCO Bank (refer note i) - - 442041

from other parties

- IIFCL (refer note i) 5 - 4,235.94
- 4,802.25 18.237.44

Notes:

(i) Consortium loan

The Company had obtained a term loan of Rs. 260 crores through Yes Bank led consortium (Yes Bank, United Bank of India, UCO Bank and
IIFCL) carrying an interest rate of 12.75%. This loan is repayablc in 44 step-up quarterly instalments. The details of thec security offered are as
below:

|. First ranking charge over all the movable properties and assets both present and future excepl current assets:

2. First ranking charge on all the intangible assets including the goodwill and uncalled capital of the Company:

3. First ranking charge of all operating cash flows and receivables from the Project or otherwise; and

4. Mortgage of 32 cents of long-term Ieased land situated at Kilmampattu Village, Panruti Taluk, Cuddalore District, Tamil Nadu,

The Company has pre-paid the term loans to United Bank of India, UCO Bank and IIFCL during the FY 2015-16 and Yes Bank during FY 2016-
17,

(i1) There are no defaults in the repayment of the principal loan and interest amounts with respect to the above loans.

{iif) The aggregate amount of long-term borrowings secured by corporate guarntee of Sical Logistics Limited, Holding Company amounts to Rs.
Nil (Previous year: Rs. 5,347.18 lakhs)

Az, in lakhs

Asat Asat As at

Extvisions 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Provision for employee benefits

= Gratuity (refer note 16) 18.23 14.69 11.78
- Leave encashment 433 7.31 8.65
22.56 22.00 20.43
Current liabilities
Rs. in lakhs
. : As at As at As at
3 Heomcial Binbilices 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
11.1 Trade payables

- Dues to micro and small enterprises (refer note below) -
- Ducs to other creditors* 2.709.39 3.142.05 3,045.69

2,709.39 3.142.05 3,045.69

Note: According to the information available with the Company, there are no dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the
“The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006”. The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office
Memorandurm dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its
customers the Entrepreneur’s Memorandum Number as allocated after filling of the Memorandum. Further there are no dues payable to micro and
small scale industries (previous year: Rs Nil),

*Refer note 17 for the amount payable to the related parties,



Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts

PART I - BALANCE SHEET

Rs. in lakhs
c RS As at Asat Asat
12 Other financisl Eabilities 31 March 2017 31 March2016 1 April 2015
Current maturities of long-term debt®
Term loans
from banks
- Yes Bank - 54493 647,11
- United Bank of India - - 512.34
- UCO Bank - - 534.95
from other parties
- [IFCL - - 512,63
Others
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings - - 221,79
i 544.93 2428.82
*The details of interest rate, repayment terms, nature and value of securities furnished are disclosed under note 9.1.
Rs. in lakhs
12 Other current liabilities s Asat Asat

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Dues to related parties

- Sical Logistics Limited (refer note 17) 50.641.67 35,171.35 21,276.95
- Sical Saumya Mining Limited (refer note 17) = 832227 -
Others
Statutory dues payable 63.99 67.74 6.18
59,705.66 43,761.36 21,283.13
Rs, in lakhs
. As at As at As at
13 Provisions 31 March 2017 31 March2016 1 April 2015
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity (refer note 16) 0.06 0.04 0.03
- Leave encashment 0.20 0.26 0.23
0.26 0.30 0.26




Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts

14 Commitments and contingent liabilities

s, in lakhs

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

Contingent liahilities

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debt (other than those where in the possibility
of any ecinomin outflow in settlement is remote)

Estimated amount of capital commitments not provided for

15 Earnings per share (EPS)
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earmings per share:

{(Figures in rupees except number of shares)

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

Particulars
March 2017 March 2016
Profit/ (Loss) afier taxation as per statement of profit and loss g -
Less: Dividends & n
Net profit adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for calculation of
diluted EPS - -
Particulars SNRE As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
MNumber of equity shares at the beginning of the year 13,00,00,000 13,00,00,000
Add: Weighted average number of equity shares issued during the year i -
Number of weighted average equity shares considered for calculation of basic earnings per share 13,00,00.000 13,00,00,000
Add: Dilutive effect = -
Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted earnings per share 13,00,00,000 13,00,00,000
Earnings / (loss) per share:
Basic a =
Diluted - s
16 Gratuity Plan
The following table sets out the status of the unfunded gratwuity plan as required under Ind A8 19 'Employee benefits'
Reconciliation of the projected benefit obligations
Rs. in lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Change in projected benefit obligation

Present Value of obligation as at beginning of the vear 14.73 11.81
Acquisition Adjustment 3 %
Current Service Cost 228 1.9]
Interest Cost 1.17 0.92
Benefits Paid - =
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligation 0.11 0.09
Obligations at year end 18.29 14.73
Change in plan assets
Ry in lakhs

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Fair Value of plan assets as at beginning of the year 5.51 451
Expected return on plan asscts 047 0.40
Contributions 0.88 0.60
Benefits paid - o
Plans assets at year end, at fair value 6.86 5.51




Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts

17

i

Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets: Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Closing obligations (18.29) (14.73)

Closing fair value of plan .86 5.51
Asset [/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet {11.43) (9.22)

Gratuiny cost for the year Rs, in lakhs
T — For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2017 March 2016
Service cost 2.28 1.91
Interest cost 114 0.92
Expected return on plan assets (047 (0.40)
Actuarial loss/(gain) 011 0.09
Net gratuity cost 3.08 2.52

Assumptions

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
_March 2017 March 2016
Discount rate 7.40% 7.90%
Estimated rate of return on plan assets 7.50% 8.50%
Salary increase 10.00% 10.00%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes mto account inflation, seniority, promotion and ather relevant factors such
as supply and demand factors in the employment market,

Information of plan assets, defined benefit obligation and experience adjustments: Ry, in lakhs
As at and for the year ended 31 March

Particulars 2013 2014 2016 2017

Present value of the defined

benefit obligations Gl (7.78) (473 A820)

Fair value of plan assets 250 34 5.51 6.86

Surplus/ (Deficit) (3.51) (4.02) (9.22) (11.43)

Experience adjustment on
plan assets [Gain [ (Loss)|
Experience adjustment on
plan liabilities [(Gain) /

As of 31 March 2017, every percentage point increase / decrease in salary growth rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation by approximately Rs.

1.50 lakh,

As of 31 March 2017, every percentage point increase / decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation by approximately Rs. 2,10

lakh.

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit obligation
by one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumptions constant,

Related parties disclosures

List of related parties:

Name of Company

Relationship

Holding Company & Group
Sical Logistics Limited
Sical Saumya Mining Limited
MMTC Limited

Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary
Substantial Interest




Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts

(i)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Details of directors of the Company:

Name of Personnel Diesignation
Captain Ramesh K.N Managing director
Mr. Ratnakar Hegde Independent directar
Mr. Sudhir Kamath Independent director
Mr. LV.N, Rao Director

Mr. Ravi Eishore
Mrs. Anju Gupta

Director (upto 4 July 2016)

Director (appointed with effect from 4 July 2016)

Mrs. Shweta Shetty Director
Mr. Sunil Deshkukh Director

Mr, Sumith Kamath Director
Details of Key Managerial Personnel:

Name of Personnel Designation

Captain Ramesh K.N
Mr. T.Subramanian
Mr P Ramachandran

Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Rs. in lakhs
. Fellow ; Key Management
Particulars Subsidiary Holding Company ¥ Pef nir
For the year ended 31 March 2017
Receipt of services - 24325
Interest accrued on subordinate debt 166.00 7.184.00 o
Subordinate debt recerved - 17,279.55 -
Subordinate debt rapaid 8,500.00 - -
Managerial remuneration - - 66.30
For the year ended 31 March 2016
Receipt of services - 25] 86 -
Interest aecrued on subordinate debt - 3,999,536 -
Subordinate debt received 8.500.00 5.977.07 5
Managerial remuneration - - £5.59
Amount outstanding as at the balance sheet date:
Rs. inlakhs
Fellow , Key Management
Particulars Subsidiary Haolding Company ¥ Ptfmnnel

Other liabilities related parties

As at 31 March 2017

Sical Logistics Limited = 39,641 67 5

Sical Saumya Mining Limited - - -
Trade payables - 26.51

As at 31 March 2016

Other liabilities related parties

Sical Logistics Limited B 35.171.35

Sical S8aumya Mining Limited 8,522.27 = -
Trade payables - 24.52 -
Segment Reporting

The Company is yet to commence its commercial operations and hence the same is not applicable



Sieal Tron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts
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Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial labilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and ather payables. The main purpose of these financial habihities is to
finance the Company's operations, The Company's principal financial assets include advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and shortterm
deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company's primary focus is to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company’s expostre to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers. The maximum exposure Lo credit risk s equal 10 the carrying value of the financial
assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. Since the Company i yet to commence the commercial
operations, the Company is not exposed to eredil risk from its customers,

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is imited as we generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by inlernational and
domestic credit raling agencies

Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's corporate treasury department is responsible for liguidity, funding as well as settlement
management, Due 1o the dynamic natire of the underlying businesses, treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under
commilted credit lines. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note As at 3] Mareh 2017
Less than 1 1-2 years More than 2 vears
Borrowings 91and 112 . - -
Trade pavable 11.1 2,709.39 - =
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as cquity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk primarily include borrowings

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rales. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term dehl obligations with floating interest
rates.

Disclosure on specified bank notes
During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA notification G.5.R. 308(E) dated 31 March
2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN') held and transacted during the period from & November 2016 to 30 December 2016, the
denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification is given below:

Rs.

Particulars SBNs* Other denemination Total
notes

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 14,300 1,601 16,101
() Permitted receipts - &0,000 80,000
(-) Permitted payments - (41,601) (41,601)
(-} Amount deposited in Banks (14,500) - (14,500)
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 - 40,000 40,000

*For the purposes of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Notes” shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India. in
the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 3,0, 3407(E), dated the & November 2016,



Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited
Notes to the accounts
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23

Financial instruments

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are as follows:

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars Note

Carrying value

Fair value

As at

As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

As at

Asat

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Financial Assets
Amortised cost

Other non-current financial assets 3.1 73.48 3932 73.48 5932
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 3.69 0.75 3.69 0,75
Total financial assets 7717 60.07 77.17 00.07
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings 91and11.2 - 5,347.18 - 5,347.18
Other current liabilities 12 59,705.66 43.761.36 59,705.66 43,761.36
Trade payables 11.1 2,709.39 3,142.05 2,709.39 3.142.05
Total financial liabilities 62,415.05 52,250.59 62,415.05 52.250.59
Auditors’ remuneration
Rs in lakhs
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Paymenls Lo Statutory Auditors for
Statutory Audit
Certification

15
0.65

1.5
0.65

Corresponding figures for the previous year presented have been regrouped, where necessary, to conform to the current vear's classification.

for CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis

Firm registration number : 0049158
LLP No: §200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner

Membership No.: 11203
Chennai

Date: 9 May 2017

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited

Capt. K. N. Ramesh
Managing Director

T. Subramanian
Chief Financial Qfficer
Chennai

Date; @ May 2017

Sumith R Kamath
Director

P. Ramachandran
Company Secretary
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Siecal Iron Ore Terminals (Mangalore) Limited
Balance sheet

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Financial Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share eapital

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
= Trade payables
Other current liabilities
Current tax

Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant accounting policies
MNotes to the accounts

The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
for Sri & Sri Associates

Chartered Accowntants

Firm registration number - 0039755

M.B. Sridharan
Partner

Membership No,: 20860
Chennai

Date: 10 May 2017

Note

3.1

4]

6.1

I
21016

Asat
31 March 2017

Asat
31 March 2016

Rs. in lakhs
Asat
1 April 2015

25.13 2513 25,13
3,634.59 354549 3.372.10
257.69 244 58 23146
381781 3,815.60 3.628469
1.82 045 352
1.62 0.45 352
3.919.63 3.816.05 3,632.21
3.650.00 3,650.00 3.400.00
3,650.00 3.650.00 3,400.00
1.01 522 3.64
24456 137.17 20291
23.66 2366 23.66
269.63 166.05 232.21
3,919.63 3,816.05 3,632.21

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Iron Ore Terminals (Mangalore) Limited

M. Venkatesh
Whole-time direcior

Bhabani Sankar Nayak
Chief Financial Officer
Bangalore

Date: 10 May 2017

T. Subramanian
Director

K. Komathi
Company Secretary



Sical Iron Ore Terminals (Mangalore) Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Particulars Note

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Onperating cash flow before working capital changes
Changes in
= Current/Non curreént assets
- Trade payables
Cash generated [rom operations
Income taxes paid
Cash generated from operations [A]

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets (Including Capital Work in Progress)
Net cash generated used in investing activities [B]

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from/(Repayment to) Holding Company
Proceeds from issue of shares

Net cash generated from financing activities [C]

Increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents 4
Cash on hand '

Balances with banks

- In current accounts

Total cash and eash equivalents

Significant saccounting policies 1
Notes o the accounts

Ag per our report of even date attached
for Sri & Sri Associates

Chartered Accountanis

Firm registration number : 0039755

M.B. Sridharan
Pariner

Membership No.: 20860
Chennai

Date: 10 May 2017

Rs. in lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
(12.71) (13.52)
(4.21) (0.42)
(16.92) (13.94)
(16.92) (13.94)
(89.50) (173.39)
(89.50) (173.39)
107,79 (63.74)

- 250.00

107.79 184.26
1.37 (3.07)

0.45 3.52

1.82 0.45

0.01 0.20

1.81 0.25

1.82 0.45

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Iran Ore Terminals (Mangalore) Limited

M. Venkatesh
Whole-time director

Bhabani Sankar Navak
Chief Financial Officer
Bangalore

Date: 10 May 2017

T. Subramanian
Director

K. Komathi
Company Secretary



Sical Iron Ore Terminals (Mangalore) Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.2

1.3

14

Company overview and Significant Accounting Policies
Company overview

Sical Iron Ore Terminal (Mangalore) Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on 9 October 2009, The Company has signed the concession agreement
dated 19 October 2009 with the New Mangalore Port Trust ("NMPT") for the mechanization of the Iron Ore handling the facilities at the Deep Draft
Multipurpose Berth at New Mangalore, on Built, Operate and Transfer Basis ("BOT"). Due to the ban imposed by the Government of Karnataka on export
of iron ore, the Company could not commence the installation of the facility and has represented to NMPT to consider handling other cargoes in
carmarked facility. Further to the orders of Honourable Karnataka High Court the Company has represented to NMPT to mitigate the hardship due to force
majeure situation, However, as NMPT has failed to mitigate the same, the Company was constrained to issue the termination notice in November 20135,
NMPT disputed the same and the matter has been referred to Arbitration.

Since the commercial operations of the Company is yet to start, the Company does not have Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2016.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors on 10 May 2017,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act) (to the extent notified), The Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3
of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

These financial statements are the company’s first Ind AS financial statements, The company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoptions were
carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting
Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Sec133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which
was the previous GAAP, Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 1,19,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issucd accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilitics in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An assct is treated as current when it is:
B Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

P Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

B Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

P It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

B It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

P There is no unconditional right 1o defer the settlement of the liahility for at least twelve months after the reporting period The Company classifies All
other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requircs management to make judgments, cstimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asscts, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are teviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following
notes:

(i) Income taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be paid or recovered
in corinection with uncertain tax positions. Also refer to Note 1,16,
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(ii) Fraperty, plant and equipment: Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the company, The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived afier determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The useful lives and residual values of company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically,
including at cach financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may
impact their life, such as changes in technology.

(iii) Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period.
Specifically, the Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment palterns, customer concentrations,
customer credit-worthiness and current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be required.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur,
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, il any, Cost
includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset,

Depreciation: The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line basis from the date the assets are
ready for intended use. Assets acquired under finance lease and leaschold improvements are amortized over the lower of estimated useful life and lease
term, The estimated useful lives of assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful Life

Asset Class Dep Rate Method (Years)
Furniture & Fixtures 10% SLM 10
Office Equipments 20%  SLM 5
EDP Equipments 3333%  SLM 3
Electrical Installation 20% SLM 5

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach reporting date,

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can he measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements
upon sale or disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition/construction of property, plant and cquipment outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost of property, plant
and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress. The Company has taken all the direct costs
incurred on acquisition of assets including the interest cost, the depreciation on assets acquired during the construction phase and all other administration
expenses incurred towards the acquisition/construction of property, plant and equipment to Capital Work-in-Progress.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.c. the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the
Company,

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the seitlement of such transactions and from the translation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting
date of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and reported within foreign
exchange gains/ (losses).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent on the
date of transaction.
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Financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value., Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assct (other than
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets. Loans and borrowings and payable are
recognised net of directly atiributable transactions costs.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost: A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met;

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (SPPI),

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets,
Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and
eligible current and non-current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice
or penalty on the principal.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and in fixed deposits with a original maturity period
of less than 12 months from balance sheet date are considered as a part of the Company’s cash management system.

(1) Financial liabilities at amortised cost; Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest methad,

Fair value measurement
The Company measures finaneial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

P In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

P In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the assel in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the usc of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed
ag follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

B Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indircctly observable

¥ Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period,

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts such as inlerest rate swaps and currency swaps to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges.
Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.



Sical Iron Ore Terminals (Mangalore) Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.11

Impairment

{t) Financial assets: In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss. The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company lo track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, eredit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events aver the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL
i5 a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount
is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

Financial assels measured at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b) Non-financial assets: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non
financial assels is impaired, If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset's carrying amount and the recoverable. Losses are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off, If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through statement of profit and loss,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the preater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, asscts are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are |argely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets
(the “cash-generating unit™).

Employee Benefit

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment henefits are classificd as cither defined contribution plans or defined
benefit plans, Under a defined contribution plan, the Company’s only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if
the fund does not held sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the emplayee, The expenditure for
defined contribution plans is recognized as expense during the period when the employee provides service, Under a defined benefit plan, it is the
Company's obligation to proyide agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company. The present value of
the defined benefit obligations is calculated using the projected unit credit method.

The Company has the following employee benefit plans:

{u) Gratuity: In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement
or lermination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company. The gratuity fund is managed by the Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The Company’s obligation in respeet of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based an
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets.
Instead net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measurc the defined benefit obligation to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined
liability or asset through other comprehensive income,

Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability) are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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(b) Compensated absences: The employces of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of the
unutilised accumulating compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The Company
records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Company
measures the expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that
has accumulated at the end of the reporting period. The Company recognizes accumulated compensated absences based on actnarial valuation, Non-
accumulating compensated absences are recognized in the period in which the absences occur. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses
immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an
asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Inventories

[nventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Cost of raw materials includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on first in, first out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Finance income and expense

Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognized as it acerues in the statement of profit and loss, using the
effective interest method.

Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss using the
effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income,

(@) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods arc measured at the amount expecied to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities based on the taxable income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that arc
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends cither to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
liability simultaneously.

(b) Deferred income fax: Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilitics are recognized
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements,
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profil will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively cnacted at the reporting date,



Sical Iron Ore Terminals (Mangalore) Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.17

I.19

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EFS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of ail dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date, Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless
otherwise stated.

First- time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

The Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS's notified
untder the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, The adoption of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, using 1 April
2015 as the transition date, Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are effective for the first Ind AS Financial Statcments for
the year ended 31 March 2017, be applied consistently and retrospectively for all fiscal years presented.

All applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively wherever required. The resulting difference between the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities in the financial statements under both Ind AS and Indian GAAP as of the Transition Date have been recognized directly in equity at
the Transition Date.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has availed itself of certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101 as explamed
below:

{a) Exceplions from full retrospective application:

A. Estimates exception: Upon an assessment of the estimates made under previous GAAP, the management is of the opinion that there was no need to
revise such estimates under Ind AS, except where estimates were required by Ind AS's and not required by previous GAAP,

(b) Reconciliations:
The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arising from the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS in
accordance with Ind AS 101:

- equity as at 1 April 2015;

- equity as at 31 March 2016;

- total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016; and
- explanation of material adjustments to cash flow slatements.
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Reconciliation of equity

Rs. (n lakhs
As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015
Particulars Previous Effect of Previous Em“_;t, of
GAAP transition to Ind AS GAAP transition Ind AS
Ind AS to Ind AS
Assets
Non-current assets
Property Plant and Equipment 25.13 - 25.13 A N - 25.13
Capital work-in-progress 3,545.49 - 3,545.49 3,372.10 - 3.372.10
Other non-current assets 244.98 B 244,98 231.46 - 23146
Current assets
Financial Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 0,45 - 0.45 3.52 - 3.52
Total assets 3,816.05 - 3.816.05 3,632.21 - 3,632.21
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 3,650.00 - 3.650.00 3,400.00 : 3,400.00
Total equity 3.650.00 . 3,650.00 3,400.00 - 3,400.00
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
= Trade pavables 522 - 522 5.64 - 3.64
Other current liabilities 137.17 - 137.17 202.81 - 202.91
Current tax 23.66 - 23.66 2366 - 23.66
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,816.05 2 3,316.05 3,632.21 - 3,632.21

The Company does not have Statement of Profit and Loss as the Company has not commenced the commercial operations.
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PART 1 - BALANCE SHEET

3 Financial Assets
Rs, in lakhs
3.1  Other non-current assets As at As st s
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured, considered gpood
Balances with Service Tax Authorities 257.69 24498 231.46
257.69 244.98 231.46
4 Financial Assets
Rs. in lakhs
4.1 Cash and cash eguivalents Asat A% ot A%xE
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
- in current accounts 1.81 0.25 343
Cash on hand 0.01 0.20 0.09
1.82 0.45 3.52
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5.1

52

5.3

5.4

5.5

Share capital
Aigthaebiad Issued, SuPsmbed and
Paid-up
Particul
adi gl Number of | Face | Total value Number of Total value
share value | (Rs. In Lakhs) share (Rs. In Lakhs)

Previous Year 2015-16
Eqguity Shares 10
Opening balance as on | Apr 2015 3,40,00,000 3,400 3.40,00,000 3,400
Increase during the year 25,00,000 250 25,00,000 250
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2016 3,65,00,000 3,650 3,65,00.000 3,630
Current Year 2016-17
Equity Shares 10
Opening balance as on 1 Apr 2016 3,65,00.000 3,650 |  3,65,00,000 3,650
Increase during the year - - . =
Closing balance a3 on 31 Mar 2017 3,63,00,000 3650 36500000 3,650

The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares Including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the
repayment of capital:

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each sharcholder is eligible for one vate per share held, The
dividend, if'any, proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of the Sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except
in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution ef all preferential amounts if any, in proportion to their shareholding.

Shares of the company held by holding company:

Particulars Equity shares with voting rights
Number of shares

Asat 31 March 2017,

Sical Logistics Limited 3.65,00,000
Az at 31 March 2016;
Sical Logistics Limited 3.65,00,000

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Class of shares /| Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Number of % holding Number of %o
shares held shares held holding

Equity shares with vating rights

Sical Logistics Limited 3,65,00,000 100 00% 3,65,00,000 | 100.00%

The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period
of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. The Company has issued 25,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each amounting to Rs. 250 lakhs
during the FY 2015-16 for consideration other than cash,

There are no shares for which calls remain unpaid.
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Current liabilities
Rs. in lakhs
As at Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

[ Financial Liabilities

6.1 Trade payables
- Dues to micro and small enterprises (refer note below) - - -
- Dues to other creditors* 1.01 522 5.64
1.01 522 5.64

Note: According to the information available with the Company, there are no dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the
“The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006™. The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office
Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its
customers the Entreprencur’s Memorandum Number as allocated afier filling of the Memorandum. Further there are no dues payable to micro and
small scale industries (previous year: Rs Nil),

Rs. in lakhs

Asat Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

7 Other current liabilities

Dues to related parties
- Sical Logistics Limited (refer note 17) 244.96 137.17 202.91
244.96 137.17 202.91
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(i)

(i)

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars

As at
31 March 2007

As at
31 March 2016

Contingent liabilitics

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debt (other than those where in the possibility of

any economic outflow in settlement is remaote)

- [hrect tax matters

Guarantees given by bankers for performance of contracts & athers

14.58
1,386.00

14.58
1,386.00

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

(Figures in rupees except number of shares)

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31

March 2007 Mareh 2016
Profit / (Loss) after taxation as per statement of profit and loss - -
Less: Dividends - -
Net profit adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for caleulation of diluted
EPS - -

As al As at

Rertioulary 31 Mareh 2017 31 March 2016
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 3,65,00,000 3,40,00,000
Add: Weighted average number of equity shares issued during the year & 25,00,000
Number of weighted average equity shares considered for caleulation of basic eamings per share 3,65,00,000 3,65,00,000
Add: Dilutive effect e ~
Number of weighted average shares considered for caleulation of diluted camings per share 3,65,00,000 3,65,00,000

Earnings / (loss) per share:

Basic
Diluted

Related parties disclosures

List of related parties:

Name of Company

Relationship

Holding Company & Group

Sical Logstics Limited Haolding Comparny
Details of directors of the Company:
Name of Personnel Designation
Mr. M.Venkatesh Whole-time director
Mr. Sumith R Kamath Director )
Mr. T Subramanian Director
Mr. Rathnakar Hegde Independent Director
Mr. Sudhit Kamath Independent Director
Mr. Sunil Deshmukh Director
Details of Key Managerial Personnel:
Name of Per 1 Designation

Mr. M. Venkatesh
Mr. Bhabani Sankar Navak
Mrs. K Komathi

Whaole-time director
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
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(iii)

(iv)

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Rs. in lakhs

Key Management

Particulars Holding Company Personnel
{§

Far the year ended 31 March 2017

Loans and advances received
Sical Logistics Limited 107.79 &
Managerial remuneration — -
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Repayment of loans and advances given

Sical Logistics Limited 65,74 -
Proceeds from issue of shares

Sical Logistics Limited 250,00 .
Managerial remuneration - -

Amount outstanding s at the balance sheet date:
Rs. 1n lakhs

Key Management

Particulars Holding Company Personnel

As at 31 March 2017

Other current liabilities
Sical Logistics Limited 244,96 E:

As at 31 March 2016

Other lipbilities related partics
Sical Logistics Limited 137.17 "

Segment Reporting
The Company is yet to commence its commercial operations and hence the same is not applicable.

Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term
deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary foeus is to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company's exposure ta eredit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of cach customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 10 the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its cantractual ohligations, and
arises prineipally from the Company's receivables from customers, The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial
assets, The objective of managing counterparty oredit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. Since the Company i3 yel 1o commence the commercial
operations, the Company is not exposed 1o credit risk from its customers.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited 25 we generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assipned by international and
domestic credit rating agencies,

Liguidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company’s corporate treasury department 15 responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement
management. Due 1o the dynamic nature of the underlying buginesses, treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed
credit lines. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expecied cash flows.
In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liahilities:
R, dn lakhs

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2007

Less than 1 1-2 years More than 2 vears
Borrowings 6.1 244.96 - -
Trade payable 7 1.04 % =
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instraments
affected by market nisk primarily include borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest mie nsk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finaneial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market interest mtes. The
Company’s exposure lo the risk of changes in market inferest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates

Disclosure on specified bank notes

[ruring the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomiriation note as defined in the MCA notification G5 R 308(E) dated 31 March 2017
on the detiils of Specified Bank Notes ('SBN') held and transacted during the period from & November 2016 1o 30 December 2016, the denomination wise
SBMs and other notes as per the notification is given below,;

R

Farticulars SBNs* Other denamination Total
notes

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 0.20 kS 0,20
(+} Permitted receipts - - £
(-} Permutted pavments - - »
(=) Amount deposited in Banks (0.20) - (0.20)
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 = a -

*For the purposes of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Notes” shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in
the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 5.0 3407(E), dated the & November 2016,

Auditors’ remuneration

Rs in lakhs
. As at Asat
tartinbye 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Payments to Statutory Auditors for
Statutory Audit 1.00 1,00
Certification 0.40 0.15
Financial instruments
The earrying vilue and fair value of financial instruments by categories as a1 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are as follows:
Fa. in lakhs
Carrying value Fair value
Particulars Note As at Asat As at Asat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 Mareh 2016
Financial Assels
Amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 4.1 1.82 0.45 1.82 0.45
Total financial assets 1.82 0.45 1.52 0,45
Financinl liabilities
Amortised cost
Other eurrent Jiabilities 7 244.96 137.17 244,96 137.17
Trade payables 6.l 1.01 522 1.01 5.2
Total financial liabilities 245.97 142.39 145.97 142.39

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments,
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Corresponding figures for the previous year presented have been regrouped, where necessary, to conform to the eurrent year's classification.

for Sri & Sri Associates for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sical Iron Ore Terminals (Mangulore) Limited

Firm registration number : 0039755

M. Venkatesh
Whole-time direcior
M.B. Sridharan
Partner
Membership No.: 20860
Chenna Bhabani Sankar Nayak
Date: 10 May 2017 Chief Financlal Officer
Bangalore

Date: 10 May 2017

T. Subramanian
Direcior

K. Komathi
Campany Secretury
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Norsea Offshore India Limited
Balance sheet

Particulars

ASSETS

MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assels (net)

Current assets
Financial Assets
- Trade recervables
- Cash and cash equivalents
= Other currént financial assets
Other current assets

Tatal Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Finaneial Liabilities
- Borrowings

Current liabilities
Fnancial Liabilities
- Trade payables
= Other financial liablities
Other current liabilities
Current tax [iabilities

Total Equity and Liabilitics

Significant accounting policies
Naotes o the accounts

Nate

4]
42
43

6.1

81
82
9

1
2023

Asat
31 March 2017

Asat
31 March 2016

Rs. in lakhs

As at

1 April 2015

8,749.02 9.976.18 10,094.43
2.751.59 2,149.26 1,340.12
11,500.61 12,125.44 11,434.55
= . 49665
49 47 75.44 68.73
1,169.96 2,667 74 361792
26.70 9.37 50.01
1,246.13 275255 4,233.29
12,746.74 14,877.99 15,667.84
5.00 5.00 5.00
{5,367 14) (4,335.51) (3,841.50)
(5,362.14) (4,330.31) (3.836.50)
2,831.25 424688 6,500.00
2.831.25 4246 88 6,500,00
0.31 08.17 1.34
1,930 38 1,307.27 6625
13,346.94 13,634 18 12,905 62
: - 31.13
15.277.63 14,961 .62 13,004 34
12,746.74 14,877.99 15,667.84

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

for CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number : 0049158
LLP No : 5200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner
Membership No. 11205

Chennai
Date: 10 May 2017

Sumith Kamath

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Norsea Offshore India Limited

Date: 10 May 2017

T. Subramanian



Norsea Offshore India Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income

Expenses
Cost of services
Finance costa

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit before tax
Tax expense
Current tax

Deferred tax

Loss for the year

Note For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the vear ended
31 March 2016

10 - 409.28
11 0.78 2.74
0.78 412.02
12 37.37 34.71
13 597.56 703.84
2 919.87 §88.52
14 105.76 105.66
1,660.56 1,732.73
{1,659.78) (1,320.71)
15
- 11.73
(602.33) (809.14)
(1,057.45) (523.30)




Norsea Offshore India Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Note

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan acturial gains/ (losses)

Others

Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Attributable to:
Owners of Company
Non- controlling interesis

Loss per equity share

(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the accounts

17

1
2to 23

For the yvear ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

(1,057.45)

(1.057.45)

(2,114.00)
(2,114.00)

The noles referred to above form an integral part of financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached
for CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number : 00491558
LLP No : 8200036

(523.30)

(523.30)

(1,046.00)
(1,046.00)

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Norsea Offshore India Limited



Norsea Offshore India Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Interest on corporale guarantee
Interest and finance charges
Opcrating cash flow before working capital changes
Changes in
- Trade receivables
- Current/Non current financial assets
- Current/Non current assets
- Trade payables
- Current/Non current liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Cash generated from operations [A]

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Investment in fixed assets

Net cash generated used in investing activities [B]

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long term borrowings

Finance cost

Net cash generated from financing activities [C]

Inerease in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Rs. in lakhs
Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
(1.659.78) (1,320.71)
919.87 888.52
25.82 29.29
371,39 672.86
(142.50) 269.96
£ 496.63
1.497.78 950.18
(17.33) 40.64
0.14 (1.17)
(307.24) 717.43
1,030.85 2,473.67
: (11.73)
1,030.85 2.461.94
307.29 -
- (770.27)
307.29 (770.27)
(792,52) (1,012.10)
(571.59) (672.86)
(1.364.11) (1,684.96)
(25.97) 6.71
75.44 68.73
49.47 75.44




Norsea Offshore India Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Particulars Note

Components of cash and cash equivalents 42
Balances with banks

- in current accounts

Total eash and cash equivalents

Significant accounting pelicies 1
Notes to the accounts 21023
The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date atlached
for CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number : 0049158
LLP No : 8200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner
Membership Mo, 11203

Rs. in lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
49.47 75.44
49.47 75.44

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Norsea Offshore India Limited

Sumith Kamath T. Subramanian
Director Director



Norsea Offshore India Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.2

Company overview and Significant Accounting Policies
Company overview

Narsca Offshore India Limited (NORSEA' or 'the Company') owns and operates a cutter suction dredger viz Sical Portofino carrying dredging activities for
various ports. The Company is a 100% subsidiary of Sical Logistics Limited (‘'SLL"). The Company has leased the dredger to its holding company.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors on 10 May 2017.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial stalements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the acerual basis, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act') (to the extent notified). The Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

These financial statements are the company's first Ind AS financial statements. The company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoptions were
carried out in accordance with Ind A% 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Sec133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous
GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in MNote 1,18,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Current versug non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
B Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

B Expecied to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

B Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A lability is current when:

B 1 is expected to be seftled in normal operating cycle

B I is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

P There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period The Group classifies All other
liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash cquivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant arcas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Income taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be paid or recovered in
connection with uncertain tax positions. Also refer to Note 1.12.

(i) Property, plani and equipment: Praperty, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the company. The charge in respect of
periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected use fullife and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful
lives and residual values of company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technology,

(iii) Qther estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the Company
estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer eredit-worthiness and
current economic trends, If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances

may be required.

Revenue recognition
In respect of dredger hire income, revenue is recognised on accrual method on rendering of services,
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1.6

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measuremeni: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, Cost includes
expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation: The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line as well as written down value basis from
the date the assets are ready for intended use. Assets acquired under finance lease and leasehold improvements are amortized over the lower of estimated useful
life and lease term. The estimated useful lives of assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

The estimated useful lives of assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Asset Class Dep Rate Method Useful Life
Dredger 6.79%  SLM 14
Tender boat 6.79% SLM 14
Pipes and floaters 19.26% WDV 20
Electrical installation 45.07% WDV 5
Furniture and fixture 2589% WDV 15
EDP equipment 43.07% WDV 5

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date,

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have difterent useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the stalement
of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are climinated from the financial statements upon sale or disposition of the asset
and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Exchange fluctuation arising out of reinstatement of the amount due for the purchase of the above assets has been capitalized and added to the cost of respective
assets as per the notification of Ministry of Corporate affairs vide notification No.GSR 225 (E) dated 31 March 2009 as amended from time to time.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not
ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary ecanomic environment in which the entity operates (i.e. the “functional
currency"”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions, Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the statement of profit and loss and reported within foreign exchange gains/
(losses).

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value, Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets, Loans and borrowings and payable are recognised net of
dirgctly attributable transactions costs.

(i) Financial assels at amortised cost: A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met;

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (SPPI).

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial
assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the cffective interest method, less any
impairment loss,

Financial assels at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and eligible
current and non-current assets,

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or
penalty on the principal,

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding book
overdrafis that arc repayable on demand, and are considered part of the Company’s cash management system,

(ii) Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value, and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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Reconciliation of equity

Rs. in lakhs
As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015
; Effect of ) Effect of
Pavticuiars Pé:f: i transition to  Ind AS PGrf::}l:“ transition to Ind AS
Ind AS Ind AS
Assels
Non-current assets
Property Plant and Equipment 9,976.18 . 9.976.18 10,094.43 - 10,094.43
Deferred tax assets (net) 2,072.27 76.99 2,149.26 1,263.13 76.99 1,340.12
Current assets
Financial Assets
- Trade receivables 231.01 (231.01) - T27.64 (231.01) 496.63
- Cash and cash equivalents 75.44 - 75.44 68.73 - 68.73
- Other current financial assets 2,667.74 - 2.667.74 3,617.92 - 3,617.92
Other current assets 8.08 1.29 9.37 50.01 - 50.01
Total assets 15,030.72 (152.73) 14,877.99 15,821.86 (154.02) 15,667.84
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 5.00 - 5.00 5.00 - 5.00
Other equity (4,200.62) (134.89) (4,335.51) (3,706.61) (134.89) (3,841.50)
Total equity (4,195.62) (134.89)  (4,330.51) (3,701.61) (134.89) (3,836.50)
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 4,246,88 - 4,246.88 6,500.00 - 6,500.00
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Trade payables 0.17 - 0.17 1.34 - 1.34
- Other financial liabilities 1,307.27 - 1,307.27 66.25 - 66.23
Other current liabilities 13,672.02 (17.84) 13,654.18 12,924.75 (19.13) 12,905.62
Current tax labilities = - - 31.13 B 31.13
Total Equity and Liabilities 15,030.72 (152.73) 14,877.99 15,821.86 (154.02) 15,667.84




Norsea Offshore India Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Equity reconciliation:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note Asat 1 April 2015
Equity under Previous GAAP: (3,706.61)
IND AS transition adjustments:
Expected credit loss on trade and other receivables i (211.88)
Tax impact on the above adjustments 76.99
Total (3,841.50)
Explanations for reconciliation Equity:
(1) Under Ind AS, the loss allowances for trade receivables have been made under expected eredit loss model,
Total comprehensive income reconciliation:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note As at 31 March 2016
Equity under Previous GAAP: (494.01)
Ind AS transition adjustments:
Interest expense on Corporate Guarantee issued by Holding Company i (29,29)
Total (523.30)

Explanations for reconciliation Equity and Total comprehensive income:
(i) Under Ind AS, interest expense has been recognised on the Corporate Guarantec issued to parent companies.

Cash Mow statement:
There were no significant reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under Indian GAAP and those prepared under Ind AS.
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Norsea Offshore India Limited
Notes to the accounts

PART I - BALANCE SHEET

3

4

4.1

Rs. in lakhs

Deferred tax assets (net)

As at
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

Asat
1 April 2015

Deferred tax assets

Unabsorbed losses 3,448.74 292978 2,399.27
Deferred tax liability
Excess of depreciation allowed under Income Tax
Act, 1961 over depreciation as per books (697.15) (780.52) (1,059.15)
2,751.59 2.149.26 134012
Current assets
Financial assets
Rs. in lakhs
Trade receivables Asat s at Azat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured, considered good - - 496 63
Doubtfil = =
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables = - &
¥ - 496.63
Rs, in lakhs
As at As at As at

4.2

4.3

5

Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)

= In CUITENnt ACCOUNIs 49.47 7544 68.73
49.47 75.44 68.73
Rs, in lakhs
Other current financial assets A sy 3ok
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured, considered good
- advances to related parties (refer note 18) 1,169.21 2.666.99 3.617.17
- security deposit 0.75 0.75 0.75
1,169.96 2.667.74 3,617.92
Rs, in lakhs
As at Asat As at

Other current assets

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Unsecured, eonsidered good
Other advances

- prepaid expenses 6.64 2.08 0.35
- statutory dues receviable 20,06 1.29 49.46
26.70 937 50.01
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PART I - BALANCE SHEET

6 Share capital

Al Tssued, Su!sa;cnb:d and
Paid-up
Perticelars Number of | Face | Total value Number of Total value
share value | (Rs. In Lakhs) share (Rs. In Lakhs)
Previous Year 2015-16
Equity Shares 10
Opening bulanee as on 1 Apr 2015 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
Increase during the vear - -
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2016 50,000 5.00 50,000 5.00
Current Year 2016-17
Equity Shares 0
Opening balance as on 1 Apr2016 50,000 5.00 30,000 5400
[nereass during the year B -
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2017 50,000 300 50,000 5,00
i The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the

repayment of eapital:

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the appraval of the Sharcholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except
in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible Lo receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts ifany, in proportion to their sharchalding,

il Shares of the company held by holding company:

Particulars Equity shares with voting rights
Numiber of sharcs

Asat 31 March 2017

Sical Logistics Limited 50,000

As at 31 March 2016:

Sical Logistics Limited 50,000

il Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Cluss of shares / Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Number of %o holding Number of Yo
shares held shares held holding

Equity shares with voting rights

Sical Logistics Limited 30,000 100:00% 50,000 | 100.00%

The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period

of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than cash.

There are no shares for which calls remain unpaid.
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Statement of changes in equity

6.1

Other equity
Rs. in lakks
Equity
Particulars Bl s Rzujned Other iiem_s -:-I: other | oo ibutable
carnings comprehensive income | e
Balance as at | April 2015 - (3,706.61) (3,706.61)
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period 30.00 (164.89) - (134 89)
Total comprehensive income for the vear - (523.30) - (523.30)
Corporate guamntee interest (refer note below) 2929 - - 29239
Balance #s on 31 March 2016 59.29 (4,394.50) - (4,335.51)
Balance as at 1 April 2016 59.29 (4,394 809 - (4,335.51)
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - - - -
Totil comprehensive income for the vear - (1,057.43) (1.05745)
Corporate guarntee interest (refer note below) 2582 - - 2582
Balance as on 31 March 2017 85.11 (5,452.25) - (5,367.14)

Note: As per Ind A3 109 Financial Instruments, the corporate guarntee given by the holding company to the banks in respect of the loans availed
by the Company qualifies as a ‘financial guarantee contract’ No payment is mdae by the Company to its holding company and this is congidered
as a deemed capital contribution by the holding company, since the guarantee has been provided by the holding company in its eapacity as #

shareholder.
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PART 1- BALANCE SHEET

Non-current liabilities
Rs, in lakhs
Asat Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

7 Financial Liabilities

Borrowings
Secured
Term loans
from banks
- Yes Bank (refer note 1) 2.831.25 4,246.88 6,500.00
2,831.25 4,246.88 6,500.00
Note:
(i) Yes Bank

The Company had obtained Rs. 8,000 lakhs term loan facility carrying an interest rate of Yes Bank Base Rate + 1,50% during FY 2012-13. This
term loan is secured by subservient charge over dredger. The tenor of the loan is 84 months including a moratorium of 36 months followed by 16
quarterly repayment,

Current liabilities

8 Financial Liabilities

Rs. in lakhs
Asat As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

8.1 Trade payables

- Dues to micro and small enterprises (refer note below) -
- Dues to other creditors 0.31 0.17 1.34

0.31 0.17 1.34

Note; According to the information available with the Company, there are no ducs payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the
"The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006”. The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office
memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its
customers the entrepreneur’s memorandum number as allocated after filling of the memorandum. Further the best of the knowledge of the
Company, there are no dues payable to micro and small scale industrics (previous year; Rs Nil),

R, in lakhs

sy As at As at As at
8.2 Othér finincial
FIend asiling 31 March 2017 31 March2016 1 April 2015

Current maturities of long-term debt*
Term loans

from banks

- Yes Bank 1.887.50 1,253.12 -
Others

- Interest accrued but not due 42 88 54.15 66.25

1,930.38 1,307.27 66.25

*The details of interest rate, repaymenl terms, nature and value of securities furnished are disclosed under note 7.

Rs. in lakhs

P As at As at As at
9 Other current liabilities
- ' 31 March2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Dues to related parties

- Norsea Global Offshore Pte. Ltd {refer note 18) 13,346.49 13,653.78 12,883.52
Others

Statutory dues 0.05 E 21.70

Creditors for expenses 0.40 0.40 0.40

13,346.94 13,654.18 12,905.62
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PART Il - STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Rs. in lakhs

10 Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Sale of services

Charter hire income - 466.58
Taxes and deductions
Less: Service tax - (57.30)
- 409.28
Rs, in lakhs

11 Other income

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Interest income

Interest income on deposits with banks 037 1.55

Frovision no longer required written back 0.41 1.19

0.78 2.74

Rz i lakhs
12 Cost of services For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Insurance 37.37 34,71

37.37 34.71

Rs. in lakhs
13 Finsice oot For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest expense

- term loan 371.59 67286

Other borrowing costs 0.15 1.69

Interest on inter-corporate guarntee (refer note 18) 25.82 29,29

597.56 703.84

Rs. in lakhs

14 Other expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Rent (refer note 19) 4.20 4.10
Payment to auditor's
a. for audit 0.40 0.40
b, for reimbursement of expenses 0.24 0.11
Legal, professional and consultancy 100.23 100.86
Rates and taxes 0.69 0.19
105.76 105.66
Rs. in lakhs

15 Income tax

For the vear ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Current meome tax;

In respect of the current period - 11.73
Deferred tax;

In respect of the current period (602.33) (809.14)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (602.33) (797.41)
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PART Il - STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

A recongiliation of the income tax provision o the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the

income before income taxes is summarized below:

fis. in lakhs

For the year ended For the vear ended

Particulars

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit before income taxes (1,659.78) (1,320.71)
Enacted tax rates in India 34.61% 34.61%
Compuled expected tax expense (574.45) (457.10)
Tax impact on carried forward losses (27.88) {38.16)
Foreign exchange gain of previous vear offered for tax s (302.15)
Total income tax expense (602.33) (797.41)

The tax rates under Indian Income Tax Act. for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 is 34.61%.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to the following:

A5, in lakhs

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Property, plant and equipment 83.37 530.51
Unabsorbed losses 518.96 278.63
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 602.33 809.14
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16 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Contingent liabilitics

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debt (other than those where in the possibility of any

economic outflow in settlement is remate)
- Direct tax matters

= Indirect tax matters

- Legal matters

22.07 22.07

Ciuarantees given by bankers/etter of credit for performance of contracts & others - -

17 Earnings per share (EPS)

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted eamings per share:

(Figures in rupees except number of shares)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit / (Loss) after taxation as per statement of profit and loss (1,057.45) {523.30)
Less: Dividends on shares and tax thereon a =
:;tspruﬁl adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for calculation of diluted (1.057.00) (523.00)
Particulars Gigip A

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Mumber of equity shares at the beginning of the year 50,000 50,000
Add: Weighted average number of equity shares issued during the year - z
Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted earnings per share 50,000 50,000
Earnings / (loss) per share:
Bal!si:: (2,114.00) (1,046.00)
Diluted (2,114.00) (1,046.00)

18 Related parties disclosures

(i) List of related partics:

Name of Company Relationship
Holding Company & Group
Sical Logistics Limited Holding Company

Morsea Global Offshore Pre. Lid

Step down Subsidiary of Sical Logistics Limited [overseas subsidiary]

(i) Details of directors of the Company:

Name of personnel

Designation

Mr. Sumith Kamath
Mr. Ratnakar Hegde
Mr. Sudhir Kamath
Mr. Sunil Deshmukh
Mr. 5. Rajappan

Mr. T. Subramanian

Director
Independent direcior
Independent director
Director
Director
Director

(iii) Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Rs, in lakhs
Particulars Fellow Key management
Subsidiary Holding Company personnel
For the year ended 31 March 2017
Repayment of loans and advances - 1,497 78 -
Receiving of services - 100,00 -
Interest on inter-corporate guarniee - 25.82 #
For the year ended 31 March 2016
Rendering of services - 409.28 -
Receiving of services - 100.00 5
Interest on inter-corporate guarntes - 2929 -
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(iv) Amount outstanding as at the balance sheet date:

Rs. in lakhs
5 Fellow . Key management
Particulars Subsidiapy  A01ding Company personnel
As at 31 March 2017
Other current liabilities 13,346.94 - -
Other current financial assets N 1,16921 -
Asx at 31 March 2016
Oither current habilities 13,6533.78 - -
Other current financial assets - 2.666.09
Leases

The Company has taken on lease office premises under cancelable operating lease agreements. The company intends to renew such leases in the normal
course of business.

Rs, in lakhs

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Rent 4,20 4.10

Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company’s operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits
that derive directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markers and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance, The Company's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers,

Credit risk

Credit nisk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets.
The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assers. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties,
taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors, Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals,
establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the eredit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. On account of adoption of Ind A$ 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The expected credit loss
model takes into account available external and internal credit risk factors and the Company’s historical experience for customers.

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top customer:

Rs. in fakhs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016

Revenue from top customer - 409,28

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratingg assigned by international and
domestic credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amounl of committed credit
facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as seltlement management,
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying busincsses, treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and eash equivalents on the basis of expected cash Mows, In-addition,
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:
Rs. in lakhs

Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017
Less than 1 vear 1-2 years More than 2 vears
Borrowings 7and 8.2 1,887.50 1,887.50 94375

Trade payable 4.1 0.17 - o
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a Anancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk. currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affacted
by market rigk primarily include borrowings and derivative financial instruments,

Interest rale risk
[nterest rate risk s the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market inferest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Forglgn currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company's exchange risk arises from its foreign currency payable (primarily in U.S. dollars). The following tables present foreign currency risk,

Particulars of un-hedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance shect date:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Foreign currency Foreign currency As at 31 Mar 2017 As at 31 Mar 2016
INR INR

Other current liabilities usp 205.84 13,346.94 13.653.78
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23

24

Financial instruments
The carrying valuc and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are as follows:

Rs, in lakhs
Carrying value Fair value
. As at Agr at Aszat
Particulars Note 3 M:ri:tlﬂl'? 31 March  31March 31 March
2016 2017 2016
Financial Assets
Amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 4.2 49.47 75.44 49.47 75.44
Other current financial assets 43 1,169.96 2,667.74 1,169.96 2,667.74
Total financial assets 1,219.43 2,743.18 1,219.43 2,743.18
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Baorrowinga 7and 8.2 4,718.75 5.500.00 4.718.75 5.500.00
Trade payables 8.1 031 0.17 0.31 0.17
Other current financial liabilities 8.2 42 88 34.15 42 88 54.15
Total financial liabilities 4,761.94 5,554.32 4,761.94 5,554.32

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, Other current and non-current financial asgets, trade receivables and payables and
borrowings approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Disclosure on specified bank notes

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA notification G.SR. 308(E) dated 31
March 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes ('SBN') held and transacted during the period from § November 2016 to 30 December
2016, the denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification is given below:

Rs.

Particulars SBNs* Other denomination Total
notes

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 - - =
(+) Permitted receipts = - -
(-} Permitted payvments = = -
(-) Amount deposited in Banks - - _
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 = = Z

*For the purposes of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Notes® shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government
of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic A ffairs number $.0. 3407(E), dated the § November 2016,

The Company is primarily engaged in providing integrated logistics services which is considered as single business segment in lerms of
segment reporting as per Ind AS 108, There being no services rendered outside India there are no separate peographical segments 1o be
reported on.

Corresponding figures for the previous vear presented have been regrouped, where necessary, to conform to the current year’s classification.

for CNGSN & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Norsea Offshore India Limited

Firm registration number : 0049155

LLP Mo : 5200036

CN GANGADARAN Sumith Kamath T. Subramanian
Pariner Director Director
Membership No,: 11205

Chennai Bangalore

Date: 10 May 2017 Date: 10 May 2017
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Sical Infra Assets Limited
Balance sheet

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Financial Assels
- Investments

- Other non-current financial assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

Current assefs
Financial Assets
- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share capital

Other Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Trade payables
Other current habihtics

Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the accounts

for CNGEN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration nurnber . 0049158

LLP Mo : 5200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partrer
Membership No, 11205

Chenngi
Date: 9 May 2017

Note

2.1
22

4.1
412

5
10

21023
The nates referred to above form an integral part of financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Rs, an lakhs

As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
0,109.45 9.066.74 9.032.70
16,567.75 16,381 21 16,587.01
2563 - 5.59
2570283 2564795 2562530
461.49 . -
0.07 3.01 219
461.56 3.01 219
26,164,39 25,650.96 25,627.49
5,329.73 532973 532973
15.923.63 19,767.92 19,747 43
2525336 2500745 2507718
546.95 546,96 346.96
= 2.94 s
546,96 549490 546,96
316.94 = ;
4713 161 3.35
364.07 361 335
26,164.39 25.650.96 25,627.49

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Infra Assets Limited

Kush S Desai Rathnakar Hegde
Whaletime Director Director

K Komathi Vinod Shenoy
Company Secrefary Chief Financial Qfficer
Bangalore

Date: 9 May 2017



Sical Infra Assets Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income

Expenses

Cost of services

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement

Profit for the year

Note

11
12

13

14

15

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Rs. in lakhs
For the year ended
31 March 2016

995.80 1927
41.71 34.04
1,037.51 5331
905.43 18.35
4.74 6.16
910.17 24.51
127.34 28.80
23.54 -
(28.57) 8.53
(23.54) =
155.91 20.27




Sical Infra Assets Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Note

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan acturial gains/ (losses)

Others

Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Attributable to:
Owners of Company
Non- controlling interests

Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the accounts

1
2023

Rs. in lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
155.91 20.27

133.91 20.27

0.29 0.04

0.29 0.04

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number : 0049155
LLP No : 5200036

CN GANGADARAN
Fartner
Membership No. 11205

Chennai
Date: 9 May 2017

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Infra Assets Limited

Kush S Desai Rathnakar Hegde
Wholetime Director Director

K Komathi Vinod Shenoy
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Bangalore

Date: 9 May 2017



Sical Infra Assets Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments:
Interest income
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Changes in
- Trade receivables
- Current/Non-current assets
- Current/Non-current financial assets
- Current/Non-current liabilities
- Current/Non-current financial liabilities
- Trade payables
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Cash generated from operations [A]

Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in subsidiaries

Loans and advances to subsidiaries

Net cash generated used in investing activities [B]

Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash generated from financing activities [C|

Inerease in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Ry. in lakhs
Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
127.34 28.80
(41.71) (34.04)
85.03 {5.24)
(461.49)
43.52 0.26
316.94 =
(15.40) {4.98)
(15.40) (4.98)
(1.00) -
13.46 3.80
12.46 5.80
(2.94) 0.82
3.01 2.19
0.07 3.01




Sical Infra Assets Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Particulars Note
Components of cash and cash equivalents 4.2
Balances with banks

- In current accounts

Total cash and cash equivalents

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the accounts 21023

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number : 0049155
LLP Mo : 8200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner
Membership No. 11205

Chennai
Date: 9 May 2017

Rs. in lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016

0.07 3.01

0.07 3.01

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Sical Infra Assets Limited

Kush 5§ Desai
Whnletime Director

K Komathi
Company Secretary

Bangalore
Date: 9 May 2017

Rathnakar Hegde
Director

Vinod Shenoy
Chief Financial Officer
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.2

14

1.5

1.6

Company overview and Significant Accounting Policies
Company overview

The Company was incorporated on 9 May 2007 as Sieal Infrastructures Limited and subsequently the name was changed to Sical Infra Assets Limited ('SIAL' or
‘the Company') with effect from 3 July 2007. The Company was formed for the purpose of housing all infrastructure projects in its fold and to bid and execute
future infrastructure projects, The ohject of the Company also includes logistics business.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors on 9 May 2017,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial stalements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act) (to the extent notified). The Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

These financial statements are the company's first Ind AS financial statements. The company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoptions were carried
out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles
generally accepted in India as prescribed under Sec133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous
GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 1.16.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard 15 initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An asset 15 treated as current when it is:
b= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

B Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

B Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

B It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

B 1t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

B There i5 no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lability for at least twelve months after the reporting period The Company classifies All other
liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformily with Ind AS requires management fo make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resulls may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodie basis. Revisions Lo aceounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Income taxes; Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be paid or recovered in
connection with uncertain tax positions. Alse refer o Note 1,13,

(it) Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Specifically, the Company
estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and
current economic trends, If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances

may be required.

Revenue recognition
Service revenue is recognised on accrual method on rendering of services.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.e. the “functional
currency”’). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the funetional currency of the Company,
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Financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value, Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets, Loans and horrowings and payable are recognised net of
directly attributable transactions costs,

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost: A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (SPPI).

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months afler the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial
assels are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, seeurity deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and cligible
current and non-current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or
penalty on the principal,

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding book
overdrafts that are repayable on demand, and are considered part of the Company's cash management system.,

(1) Financial labilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value, and
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement 15 based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

B In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

B In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measuremeént 15 unobservable

For assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment

(i) Financial assets: In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applics expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss: The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
eredit risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. I in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.,
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Lifetime ECILs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL 15 a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable, The provision matrix is based an
its historically observed default ratcs over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is
reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assels measured at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of those
assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

) Non-financial assets: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there 15 any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non
financial assets is impaired. [f any such indication exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss,

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the recoverable. Losses are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are
written off, If the amount of impairment loss subsequently deereases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through statement of profit and loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit™),

Employee Benefit

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans. Post-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit
plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the Company's only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits, The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for defined contribution
plans is recognized as expense during the period when the employee provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company’s obligation to provide
agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company, The present value of the defined benefit obligations is
calculated using the projected unit credit method.

The Company has the following employee benefit plans:

{a) Gratuity: In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, al retirement or
termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company, The gratuity fund is managed by the Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC). The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets. Instead net
interest recognized in profit or loss is ealculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through ather
comprehensive income.

Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability)
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

(b) Compensaied absences: The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised
accumulating compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash al retirement or termination of employment, The Company records an
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement. The Company measures the
expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the end of the reporting period, The Company recognizes accumulated compensated absences based on actuarial valuation, Non-accumulating compensated
absences are recognized in the period in which the absences occur. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses immediately in the statement of profit and
loss.
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1.12

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, il is probable that an outflow of economic
henefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to sertle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertaintics surrounding the obligation

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset,
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measurad reliably,

Finance income and expense
Finance income consiss of interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss, using the effective
interest method,

Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss using the effective
interest method,

Income tax
Income 1ax comprises current and deferred tax, Income tax expense 15 recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items directly
recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income,

fa) Current income fax; Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured al the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities based on the taxable income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period, The Company offsets current tax assefs and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultancously.

(h) Deferved income tax: Deferred meoome tax 15 recognized using the balance sheet approach, Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when
the deferred income tax arises [rom the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither acoounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction,

Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be available agamst which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax habilitics are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

“T'he carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxabie
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assel to be utilized,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected (o apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 15 computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period,

Diluted EFS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, Dilutive polential equity shares are
decmed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued af a later date, Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise
stated.
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First- time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

The Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2017 are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with [nd AS's notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, The adoption of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, using 1 April 2015 as the
transition date. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are effective for the first Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31
March 2017, be applied consistently and retrospectively for all fiscal vears presented.

All applicable Ind AS have heen applied consistently and retrospectively wherever required, The resulting difference between the carrying amounts of the assets
and liahilities in the financial statements under both Ind AS and Indian GAAP as of the Transition Date have been recognized directly in equity at the Transition
Date,

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has availed itself of certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101 as explained below:

(a) Exceptions from full retrospective application:

A. Estimates exception; Upon an assessment of the estimates made under previous GAAP, the management is of the opinion that there was no need to revise
such estimates under Ind AS, except where estimates were required by Ind AS's and not required by previous GAAP.

(b} Reconciliations:

The following reconciliations provide a gquantification of the effect of significant differences arising from the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS in
accordance with Ind AS 101

-gquity as at 1 April 20135;

-equity as at 31 March 2016;

-total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016; and

-explanation of material adjustments (o cash flow statements.
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Reconciliation of equity
Rs. in lakhs

As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015
: . Effect of g Effect of
Particulars Erevious transition to  Ind AS Pé:::s transition to Ind AS
Saat Ind AS Ind AS

Assets
Non-current assets
Property Plant and Equipment 2358 (23.58) - 2875 (28.73) -
Financial Assels
= Investments 901279 53.95 2.066.74 9,012.79 19.91 9.032.70
- Other non current financial assets 17,133.18 (351.97) 16,581.21 17,138.98 (551.97) 16,587.01
Deferred tax assets (net) - - - - 5.59 5.59
Current assets
Financial Assets

- Trade receivables - - - - - -

- Cash and cash equivalents 3.01 > 3.01 2,19 - 2.19
Total assets 26,172.56 (521.60) 25,650.96 26,182.71 (555.22) 25,627.49
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 5,329.73 - 532973 5.329.73 - 3,32973
Other equity 20,292.26 (524.34) 19,767.72 20,302.67 (555.22) 19,747.45
Total equity 25,621.99 (524.54) 25,097.45 25,632.40 (555.22) 25,077.18
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Other non-current Habilities 546.96 - 546.96 346,96 = 546,96
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - 2.94 2.94 - - -
Current liabilities
Other current liabilities 3.61 - 3l 333 - 3.35

Total Equity and Liabilities 26,172.56 (521.60) 25,650.96 26,182.71 (555.22) 25,627.49
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Equity reconciliation:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note Asat 1 April 2015
Equity under Previous GAAP: 20,322.94
IND AS transition adjustments;
Fait valuation of property, plant and equipment i (28.75)
Expected credit loss on other receivables 1 (551.97)
Interest income on Corporate Guarantee issued to subsidiary iii 19.91
Tax impact on the above adjustments 5.39
Total 19,767.72

Explanations for reconciliation Equity:

(i} Under Ind AS, the [air value of property, plant and equipment have been used as deemed cost as on the date of transition as per Ind AS 101
(1) Under Ind AS, the loss allowances for other receivables have been made under expected credit loss model.

(1i) Under Ind AS, interest income has been recognised on the Corporate Guarantee issued to subsidiaries.

Total comprehensive income reconciliation:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note As at 31 March 2016
Equity under Previous GAAP; (10.41)
Ind A3 transition adjustments:
Depreciation saving on account of fair valuation of property, plant and equipment i 5.17
Interest income on Corporate Guarantee issued to subsidiary ii 34.04
Tax impact on the above adjustments (8.53)
Total 20.27

Explanations for reconciliation Equity and Total comprehensive income:

(1) Under Ind A5, the loss allowances for trade and other receivables have been made under expected credit loss model,

(ii) Under Ind AS, the fair value of property, plant and equipment have been used as deemed cost which resulted in change in depreciation on such
assets,

(111) Under Ind AS, interest expense has been recognised on the Corporate Guarantee issued to parent companies.

Cash Mow stalement:
There were no significanl reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under Indian GAAP and those prepared under Ind AS.
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2 Financial assets Rs. in lakhks
As at As at As at
2.1 1 t i
nvestments 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Investments in equity instruments
Subsidiaries (unguoted)
- Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited - 7.26,90,000 Shares (PY - p -
7,26,90,000 Shares) of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up S HRRiS A2
- Sical Bangalore Logistics Parks Limited - 10,000 Shares (PY - Nil Shares) of Rs. 10/ | 00
each fully paid up : )
9,109.45 9,066.74 9,032.70
Aggregate value of unguoted investments 9.109.45 9.066.74 9.032.70
Rz, in lakhs
A As at As at As at
22 Oth : thi 1 1
gyl i 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured, considered good
- advances to related parties (refer note 18) 16,567.73 16,581.21 16,587.01
16,567.75 16,581.21 16,587.01
R in lakhs
As at As at Asat
3 Defi d
S AR ey 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Deferred tax assets
Excess of depreciation allowed under Incoms Tax Act, 1961 over depreciation as per 1092 9.57
Unabsorbed losses 3407 o =
Deferred tax liability
Others (19.36) - (3.98)
25.63 - 5.59
Current assets
4 Financial assets
Rs. tn lakfy
As at As at As at
4.1 T
ol pepelvables 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured, considered good* 461 49 = ==
Doubtful = & =
Less: Provision for doubtful recervables - - =
461.49 - =
*Refer note 18 for the amount receivable from the related parties,
Rs. in lakhs
As at As at Asat

4.2 Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2016 31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
- IN CUrrent accounts

0.07

3.01

2.19

0.07

3.01

2,19
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5 Share capital
Authorised Issued, Su!bscribed and
Paid-up
Particul
artleutars Number of | Face | Total value Number of Total value
share value | (Rs. In Lakhs) share {Rs. In Lakhs)
Previous Year 2015-16
Equity Shares 10
Opening balance as on | Apr2013 6,70,00,000 6,700.00 58,3297 286 532973
Increase during the year - -
Closing balance as on 3] Mar 2018 6,70,00,000 670000 | 53257286 5,329.73
Preference Shares 100
Opening halance as on 1 Apr 2015 15,00,000 1,500.00 -
Increase during the year -
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2016 13,00,000 1,500.00 -
Current Year 2016-17
Equity Shares 10
Opening balance as on | Apr 2016 6,70.00,000 6,70000 | 53297286 5,329.73
Increase during the year = -
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2017 6,70,00,000 6,700.00 | 53297286 532973
Preference Shares 100
Opening balance as on 1 Apr 2016 15,000,000 1,500.00 - -
Increase during the year -
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2017 15,00,000 1,500.00 - -
i The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the

repayment of capital:

Equity shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per
share held, The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of the Sharcholders in the ensuing Annual
General Meeting, except in case of intenim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets
of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts if any, in proportion to their shareholding,

ii Shares of the company held by holding company:

Particulars Equity shares with voting rights
Number of shares

As at 31 March 2017:

Sical Logistics Limited 2,85,65,000

As at 31 March 2016:

Sical Logistics Limited 2,85.65,000

i Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 Mareh 2016
Number of % holding Number of %o
shares held shares held holding

Equity shares with voting rights N

Sical Logistics Limited 2,85,65,000 33.60% 2.85,65000 | 5360%
0ld Lane Maurititus TV Lid, 247,32,286 46.40% 24732286 | 46.40%)

iv. The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares ner has bought back any class of equity shares during the
period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date nor has issued shares for consideration other than cash

v There are no shares for which calls remain unpaic.
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6 Other equity

Rs. in lakhs
Other reserves Retained Other items of quuh‘y
Particulars Securities : other attributable
% earnings

premium comprehensive | to owners of

Balance as at ] April 2015 20,143.79 158.88 - 20,302.67
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - {555.22) - (555.22)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 2027 - 2027
Balance as on 31 March 2016 20,143.79 (376.07) - 19,767.72
Balanceas at | April 2016 20,143.79 (376.07) - 19,767.72

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - B - -
Total comprehensive income for the year s 155.91 - 15591
Balance as on 31 March 2017 20,143.79 (220.16) - 19,923.63
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Non-current liabilities

7

10

Rs. in lakhs

As at As at As at

Other non-current liabilities 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Advances from related parties:
Sical Logistics Limited (refer note below and 18) 546.96 546.96 546.96

546.96 546.96 546.96

Note:

In compliance with the Sharcholders Agreement dated 24 August 2007 between the Company, Sical Logistics Limited (‘Holding Company' or
'SLL") and Old Lane Mauritious IV Limited ('Investor') and Supplementary Sharcholders Agreement dated 19 April 2010 and Addendum thersto
dated 14 September 2010, the Company had issued 5,32,97,286 equity shares of Rs.10/- each at varying premium amounts as specified in the
said agreements.

Out of which 2,85,65,000 shares were issued to SLL of which face value is Rs. 28,56,50,000 and premium is Rs.77,77,67.815. However, SLL

had paid a sum of Rs.1,11,81,14,035 towards share application Money. Hence, the excess amount of Rs.3,46,96,220 paid by SLL towards share
application money remained unadjusted.

As this amount also formed part of the contribution towards shares issued, the same has to be considered as additional premium on the shares
already allotted to it. Pending appropriate amendments to the shareholders agreement, no adjustment has been made to this balance and the same
has been retained and disclosed as 'Other non-current liabilities',

Rs. in lakhs

As at As at As at

Diferred tax lhilitles (nee) 31 March2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Deferred tax liability

Others - 10.79 Z
Deferred tax assets

Excess of depreciation allowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 over

depreciation as per books . (7.85) 35

- 2.94 -

Current liabilities
Rs. in lakhs

As at As at As at

Finaneisl Liakilities 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Trade payables
- Dues to micro and small enterprises (refer note below) = - =
- Dues to other creditors 31694 - -

316.94 - -

Note: According to the information available with the Company, there are no dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the
“The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 20067, The Ministry of Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an
office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence
with its customers the entreprencur’s memorandum number as allocated after filling of the memorandum. Further there are no dues payable to
micro and small seale industries (previous year: Rs Nil).

Rs. in lakhs

Asat As at Asat

S o 31 March2017 31 March2016 1 April 2015

Others
Statutory dues 1.87 029 0.28
Creditors for expenses 45,26 3.32 3.07

47.13 3.61 335
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12

13

14

Rs. in lalkhs

Revenue from operations

For the vear ended
31 March 2016

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Sale of services

Income from integrated logistics services 995.80 19.27
Taxes and deductions
Less: Serviee lax
995.80 19.27

Rs. in lakhs

Other income

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Interest income

Interest on inter-corporate guarntee (refer note 18) 41.71 34.04

41.71 34.04

Rs. in lakhs

Cost of services For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Hire charges 905.43 18.35

905.43 18.35

Rs. in lakhs

Other expenses For the yvear ended For the year ended

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Payment to auditor's

a. for audit 2.88 2.86
c. for reimbursement of expenses 0.29 0.27
Legal, professional and consultancy 0.11 2.53
Miscellaneous expenses 1.46 0.50
4.74 6.16

Rs. in lakhs

Income tax

For the vear ended

For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Current income tax:
In respect of the current period 23.54
Deferred tax:
In respect of the current period (28.57) 8.33
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement (23.54) -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss {28.57) 8.53
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PART 11 - STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the

income before income Laxes is summarized below:

Rs. in lakhs
; For the year ended  For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit before income taxes 127.34 28.80
Enacted tax rates in India 30.90% 30.90%
Computed expected tax expense 39.35 8.90
Tax impact on carried forward losses (39.22) -
Tax impact on property, plant and equipment (4.40) (0.37)
Tax rate difference (4.30) -
Total income tax expense {28.57) §.53

The tax rates under [ndian Income Tax Act, for the vear ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 is 30.90%.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to the following:

Rs. in lakhs
Pivticuli For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Property, plant and equipment 3.07 1.72
Unabsorbed losses 34.07 3
Others (8.57) 6.81
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 28.57 8.53
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(i)

(i)

(iiiy

Commitments and contingent liabilities

Rs, i lakhs

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2016

Asat
31 March 2017

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debt (other than those where in the possibility of
any ecinomin outflow in settlement is remote)

- Direct tax matters

- Indirect tax matters

= Legal matters

Guarantees given to bankers for performance of contracts & others

- 1.00
19.245.00 29.245.00

Earnings per share (EPS)
The following table sets forth the computation of hasic and diluted carnings per share:

(Figures in rupees except number of shares)

Particulars

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 20146

Profit after taxation ag per statement of profit and loss 155.91 2027
Less: Dividends on shares an;l tax thereon % =
Net profit adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS
155.91 20.27

Particulars At Sl

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 5,32,97.286 5,32,97,286
Add: Weighted average number of equity shares issued during the year - -
Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted camings per share 5,32,97.286 5,32.97,286
Earnings / (loss) per share:
Basic 0.29 0.04
iluted 0.29 0.04

Related parties disclosures

List of related parties:

Name of Company Relationship

Holding Company & Group
Sical Logistics Limited Ultimate Holding Company
Sical Mulimodel and Rail Transport Limited ('SMART) Subsidiary

Sical Bangalore Logistics Parks Limuted ('SBLPLY) Subsidiary

Sical Sattva Rail Terminal Private Limited (SSRTPLY)  Joint Venture of SMART
Details of Key managerial personnel:

Name of personnel Designation

Mr Kush 5 Desai
Mr. Vinod Shenoy

Whole time director
Chief Financial Officer

Mrs K. Komathi Compuny secretary
Details of direcotrs of the Company:

Name of personnel Designation

Mr. Kush § Desai Whale-time Director
Mr. Sunil Sudhakarrao Deshmukh Director

Mr. Rathnakara Hegde
Mr. 5. Ravinarayanan
Mr. V.P. Ravi

Mr. Prasanna Kasturi

Independent director
Independent director
Director (upto 7 November 2016)

Director (appointed with effect from 7 Movember 2016)
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(iv) Related partics with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

™)

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Compan'iesllnavlng Subsidiary Hiidlog Company Key management
substantial interest _personnel
For the year ended 31 March 2017
Rendering of services
SMART - 995 80 - -
Loans and advance taken
SMART - 1346 = =
Interest on inter-corporate guarniee
SMART - 41,71 . %
Managerial remuneration - = = -
For the yvear ended 31 Mareh 2016
Rendering of services
SMART - 19.27 - z
Loans and advance taken
SMART - 5.80 - g
Interest on inter-corporate guamtee
SMART - - = 2
Managerial remuneration = £ = =
Amount outstanding as at the balance sheet date:
Rs, in lakhs
. Companies havin ‘ iz = Key management
Particulars su'm:'n fial in m_ugt Subsidiary Holding Company ¥ mf@ el
As at 31 March 2017
Other non-current liabilities
SLL - = 546.96 -
Trade receivables
SMART £ 46149 : z
Other non current financial assets
SMART - 16,567.75 - -
As at 31 March 2016
Other non-current liabilities
SLL : d 546.96
Other non current financial assets
SMART - 16,581.21 - -

Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets include advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits
that derive directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and lquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The Company's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company's receivables from customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the financial assets. The
objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, taking into
account their financial position, past experience and other factors, Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvale, establizhing
eredit limits and continuously monitoring the eredit worthiness of customers (o which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. On
account of adoption of [nd AS 109, the Company uses expected eredit loss model to asscss the impairment loss or gain. The expected credit loss model takes
into account available external and internal credit risk factors and the Company's historical experience for customers.

The following table gives details in respect of percenlage of revenues generated from top customer:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016

Revenue from top customer 905.80 19.27
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One customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue and trade receivables for the year ended 31 March 2017,

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks with high credil ratings assigned by international and domestic
credit rating agencics.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilitics
to meet obligations when due, The Company’s corporate Lreasury department is respensible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under commitied credit lines, Management
monitors rolling foreeasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows, In addition, processes and
palicies related to such risks are overseen by seénior minagement.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Mluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprise
three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk, Financial instruments affected by market
risk primarily include borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

Disclosure on specified bank notes

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA natification G.8.R. 308(E) dated 31 March 2017 on
the details of Speeified Bank Notes ('SBN") held and transacted during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, the denomination wise SBNs
and other notes 1% per the notification is given below:

Hs.

Particilars SBNs* Other denomination Total
notes

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 = 2 &
(+) Permitted receipts = = A
(=) Permitted payments - < .
() Amount deposited in Banks - - -
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 L - =

*For the purposes of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Notes” shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in the
Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number S.0, 3407(E). dated the § November 2016,
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Financial instruments
The carrying value and fair value of financial mstruments by catégories as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are as follows:
Es. in lakhs

Carrying value Fair value

Particulars Note As at As at Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Financial Assets
Amortised cost

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries 2.1 9.109.45 9.066.74 9.109.45 9.066.74
Other non-current financial assets 22 16,567.75 16,581.21 16,567.75 16,581.21
Trade receivables 1.1 461.49 - 461,49 -
Cash and cash equivalents 42 0.07 3.01 0.07 3,01
Total financial assets 26,138.76 25,650.96 26,138.76 25,650.96

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Trade payables 9.1 316,94 - 316.94 -

Total financial liabilities 316.94 - 316.94 -

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, Other current and non-current financial assets, trade receivables and payables and
borrowings approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shori-term maturities of these instruments.

The Company is primarily engaged in providing integrated logistics services which is considered as single business segment in terms of
segment reporting as per Ind AS 108, There being no services rendered outside India there are no separate geographical segments to be
reported on.

Corresponding figures for the previous year presented have been regrouped, where necessary, to conform to the current year's classification.

for CNGSN & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Cheartered Accountants Sical Infra Assets Limited

Firm registration number ; 0049158

LLP No: 5200036

Kush § Desai Rathnakar Hegde
Wheletime Director Director

CN GANGADARAN

Partner

Membership No.. 11205

Chennai

Date: 9 May 2017 K Komathi Vinod Shenoy
Company Secretary Chigf Financial Qfficer
Bangalore

Date: 9 May 2017
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Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited
Balance sheet

Rs. tn lakhs
As at As at As at
Particulars Note 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 2 41,280 39,034 30,912
Capital work-in-progress 2 3,276 3,836 9.514
Other intangible agsels & 1,612 1,679 1,962
Financial Assets 3
- Investments 3.1 345 345 345
- Other non-current financial assets iz 418 77 62
Other non-current assets 4 825 H6Y 356
47,763 45,840 43,351
Current assets
Inventories 3 - 3 1
Financial Assets &
- Trade receivables 6.1 5,203 4,114 4,129
- Cash and cash equivalents 6.2 490 1,016 624
- Other current financial assets 6.3 1,832 2436 150
Current tax assets (Net) 7 1,556 1,220 287
Other current assets 8 875 G649 211
9,960 9,458 6,002
Total Assets 57,723 55,298 49,353
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 9 7,269 7,265 7.269
Other Equity % 8,758 8,589 8,452
16,027 13,838 15,721
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 10 16,508 16,610 5914
Provisions 11 B8 &8 -
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 12 3232 3,023 3,035
19,828 19,721 8,951
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities 13
- Borrowings 13.1 1,619 3l 1,877
- Trade payables 13.2 2,098 1,424 1,189
- Other financial Liablities 13.3 743 1,081 2,423
Other current liahilities 14 17.384 17,134 19,132
Pravisions 15 24 29 60
21,868 19,715 24,681
Total Equity and Liabilities 57,723 55,298 49,353
Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the accounts 2035
The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached
for CNGSN & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limite
Firm registration number - 0049155
LLP Na: 5200036
CN GANGADARAN M. Srinivasan Kush § Desai
Parmer Wholetinte Director Director
Membership No. 11205
Chennaj Vinod Shenoy V Radhakrishnan
Date: 9 May 2017 Chief Financial Officer  Compeany Secretary

Chennai
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Balance sheet

Rs, in lakhs
As at As at Asat
Particulars Note 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Date: 9 May 2017



Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income

Expenses

Cost of services

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit before tax
Tax expense
Current tax

Deferred tax
Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement

Profit for the year

Note For the yvear ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

16 17.783 17,792
17 643 70
18,426 17,862

18 12,927 13,518
19 887 681
20 2,542 1,456
2 639 763
21 1,137 1,373
18,132 17,793

294 69

22

- 26
209 (12)
- (26)

85 81




Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited

Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Note

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan acturial gains/ (losses)

Others

Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Attributable to:
Owners of Company
Non- controlling interests

Earnings per equity share
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

Significant accounting policies
Naotes to the accounts

24

1
21035

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

85

85

0.12
0.12

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number : 0049158
LLP No : 5200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner
Membership No. 11205

Chennai
Date: 9 May 2017

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

81

81

0.11
0.11

Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited

Kush § Desai
Director

M. Srinivasan
Whaletime Director

V Radhakrishnan
Company Secretary

Vinod Shenoy

Chief Financial Officer
Chennai

Date: 9 May 2017



Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activitics
Profit before tax
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Profit on sale of fixed assets
[nterest and finance charges
Interest income
Operating cash flow before working capital changes
Changes in
- Trade receivables
- Current/Non current financial assets
- Current/Non current assets
- Inventories
- Current/Non current financial liabilities
- Current/Non current liabilities
- Trade payables
- Provisions
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Cash generated from operations [A]

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets (Including Capital Work in Progress)
Bank deposits

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Net cash generated used in investing activities [B]

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of long term borrowings

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Proceeds from/(repayment of) Short Term Borrowings (net)
Finance cost

Net cash generated from financing activities [C]

Increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C|
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Rs. in lakhs
Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
294 69
639 765
- (28)
2,394 1.336
{293) (42)
3,032 2,100
(1.089) 15
554 (2.281)
(162) (771)
(1 @
28 3
230 (1,978)
674 235
(5) 37
3,261 (2,622)
(336) (333)
2,025 (2,955)
(2,265) (2.967)
4 22
= 69
(2,261) (2.876)
(10,616) (8.333)
10,148 17,682
1,588 (1.846)
(2,310 (1,280)
(1,190) 6,223
(526) 302
1,016 624
490 1,016




Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Particulars Note
Components of cash and cash equivalents 6.2
Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in fixed deposits

Total cash and cash equivalents

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the accounts 21035

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number @ 0049135
LLP No : $200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner

Membership No. 11203

Chennai
Date: 9 May 2017

Rs. in lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
1 7
134 431
355 378
490 1,016

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited

M. Srinivasan
Whaletime Director

Yinod Shenoy

Chief Financial Officer
Chennai

Date; 9 May 2017

Kush S Desai
Director

V Radhakrishnan
Company Secretary
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

1
1.1

1.3

1.4

Company overview and Significant Accounting Policies
Company overview

Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Ltd (SMART), is the container and rail logistics initiatives of Sical Logistics Limited. SMART 15 a 100%% subsidiary of
Sical Infra Assets Limited (SIAL), which in turn is a subsidiary of Sical Logistics Limited (SLL). SLL had obtained Category I license from the Ministry of
Railways for Rs.50 Crores for operating container rail across all sectors throughout India, catering to both EXIM and domestic traffic. The license was
transferred to SMART in November, 2007,

SMART operates 7 rakes and about 1,450 containers. It operates in sectors such as Chennai-Delhi, Rajasthan-Chennai, Gujarat-Chennai, Vizag - Kapilash
Road, Kanpur - INPT and Raipur-Jamshedpur. The Company operates CFSs at Chennai, Bangalore and Vizag. The Company is developing rail linked Inland
Container Depots (ICD) /Container Freight Station (CFS) in Bangalore and Chennai which are under implementation.

Pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation sanctioned by the Honourable High court of Madras vide the Order dated 19 July 2012 and received on 25 September
2012, Sical Distriparks Limited (SDL) (A company engaged in CFS activitics), a fellow subsidiary of the company and Sical Hambuja Logistics Private Limited
(SHLPL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company were merged with SMART with effect from 1 April 2011,

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors on 9 May 2017.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the Securitics and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS
as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

These financial statements are the company's first Ind AS financial statements. The company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoptions were
carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting
Principles generally accepted in India as preseribed under Sec133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was
the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 1.19.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
B Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

B Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

B Cash or cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

B [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

B [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

B There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period The Group classifies All other
liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating eyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, cstimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Income taves: Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be paid or recovered in
connection with uncertain tax positions. Also refer to Note 1,12,
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1.5

1.6

1.7

(i) Property, plant and equipment: Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the company. The charge in respect of
periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected use fullife and the expected residual value at the end of its life, The useful
lives and residual values of company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end, The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technology.

(iti) Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period, Specifically, the Company
estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment paltéms, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and
current economic trends. If the finaneial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances

may be required,

Revenue recognition

In respect of rail operations, revenue is recognised on accrual method on rendering of services. In respect of container freight station, handling revenue is
recognised on rendering of such services and storage revenue is recognized based on number of storage days.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation: The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line basis from the date the assets are ready
for intended use except for rakes and containeres in Rail division.

For rakes and containers, the management estimates a useful life of 21 years. For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and technical evaluation
carried out by experts, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets.Hence the useful lives for these agsets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1 of the Companies Act 2013,

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life as follows:

Consideration paid for transfer of License issued by Ministry of Railways in Company's favour to operate container traing pan India, is capitalised as an
Intangible asset and is amortised over a period of 20 years from the date of commercial operations.

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortisation period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and the amortisation method is
revised to reflect the changed pattern,

The estimated useful lives of assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Asset Class Dep Rate Method HeehulLite
(Years)
EDP equipments 3333% SLM 3
Furniture and fixture 10.00%  SLM 10
Office equipments 2000%  SLM 5
Vehicles 12.50%  SLM 8
Electrical Installations 10.00%  SLM 10
Building 1.67% SLM 60

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date,

When parts of an ilem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate ilems (major components) of property,
plant and equipment. Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or disposition of the asset
and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not
ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.e. the “functional
currency™). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the Company,
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1.8

1.9

1.10

Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the respective transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at the exchange rates prevailing at reporting date of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the stalement of profit and loss and reported within foreign exchange gaing/
(losses),

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent on the date of
transaction,

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets. Loans and borrowings and payable are recognised net of
directly attributable transactions costs.

(1) Financial assets at amortised cost: A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (SPPI).

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial
assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried al amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash cquivalents, employee and other advances and cligible
current and non-current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or
penalty on the principal.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding book
overdrafts that are repayable on demand, and are considered part of the Company’s cash management system,

(it) Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value,
and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

B [n the principal market for the asset or lability, or

B In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the assct or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic henefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hicrarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

P Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on & recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Impairment

(i) Financial assets: In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss. The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
credit risk since initial recognition. 1f credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss, However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
inerease in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument, The 12 month ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable, The provision matrix is based on ils
historically observed default ratcs over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- looking estimates. At every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is
reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured al amortised cost, contractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b) Non-financial assets; The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non
financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an assel’s carrying amount and the recoverable. Losses are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are
written off, If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring afier the impairment was
recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through statement of profit and loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of ils value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit™).

Employee Benefit

The Company participates in various employee benefit plans, Post-employment benefits are classified as either defined contribution plans or defined benefit
plans. Under a defined contribution plan, the Company's only obligation is to pay a fixed amount with no obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits, The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the employee. The expenditure for defined contribution
plans is recognized as expense during the period when the employee provides service. Under a defined benefit plan, it is the Company's obligation to provide
agreed benefits to the employees. The related actuarial and investment risks fall on the Company. The present value of the defined benefit obligations is
calculated using the projected unit credit method,

The Company has the following employee benefit plans:

(a) Gratuity: In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for a lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or
termination of employment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with the Company, The gratuity fund is managed by the Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC). The Company's obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains or losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include an expected return on plan assets, Instead net
interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The actual return on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset through other
comprehensive income,

Remeasurements comprising of actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability)
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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1.16

(b) Compensated absences: The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised
accumulating compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or termination of employment. The Company records an
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement, The Company measures the
expected cost of compensated absences as the additional amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at
the end of the reporting period. The Company recognizes accumulated compensated absences based on actuarial valuation. Non-accumulating compensated
absences are recognized in the period in which the absences occur. The Company recognizes actuarial paing and losses immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected (o be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset,
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Cost of raw materials includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on
first in, first out basis, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

Finance income and expense
Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss, using the effective
interest method,

Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss using the effective
interest method,

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profil and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income,

(a) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities based on the taxable income for the period, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends cither to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously.

(b) Deferred income tax: Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when
the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differcnces,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sulficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expeeted to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive patential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate,

Rounding of amounis
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise
stated.

First- time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

The Company's financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2017 are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS's notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, The adoption of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, using 1 April 2015 as the
transition date. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are effective for the first Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 31
March 2017, be applied consistently and retrospectively for all fiscal years presented.

All applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively wherever required. The resulting difference between the carrying amounts of the assets
and hiahilities in the financial statements under both Ind AS and Indian GAAP as of the Transition Date have been recognized directly in equity at the Transition
Date.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has availed itself of certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101 as explained below:

(a) Exceptions from full retrospective application:

A. Estimates exceprion: Upon an assessment of the estimates made under previous GAAP, the management is of the opinion that there was no need 1o revise
such estimates under Ind AS, except where estimates were required by Ind AS's and not required by previous GAAP.

(b) Reconciliations:

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arising from the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS in
accordance with Ind AS 101: :

-equity as at 1 April 2015;

-gquity as at 31 March 2016;

-total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2016, and

-explanation of material adjustments to cash flow statements.
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Reconciliation of equity
Rs. in lakhs

As at 31 March 2016 Asat 1 April 2015
Particulars Previous Effect of Previous Em"'ft.uf
GAAP transition Ind AS GAAP transition Ind AS
to Ind AS to Ind AS

Assels

Non-current assets

Property Plant and Equipment 33,066 5,968 39,034 25211 5,701 30,912
Capital work-in-progress 3,836 - 3,836 9514 - 9,514
Goodwill 601 (601) - a0l (601) -
Other intangible assets 2,903 (1,224) 1,679 3,286 (1,324) 1,962
Financial Assets
- Investments 345 p 345 345 - 345
= Other non current financial assels 280 (212) 77 274 (212) 62
Other non-current assets 869 - 869 556 - 356
Current assets

Inventories 3 - 3 1 - 1
Financial Assels
- Trade receivables 5.397 (1,283) 4,114 5.062 (933) 4,129
- Cash and cash equivalents 1,016 - 1,016 624 - 624
- Other current financial assets 2,436 - 2,436 150 - 130
Current Tax Assets {Met) 1,220 - 1,220 887 - 887
Other current assets 669 - 669 211 - 211
Total assets 52,630 2,648 55,298 46,722 2,631 49,353
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Equity Share capital 7.269 - 7,269 7.269 - 7.269
Other equity 6,997 1,592 8,589 6,879 1,573 £.452
Total equity 14,266 1,592 15,858 14,148 1,573 15.721
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities

- Borrowings 16,610 - 16,610 5,916 A 5916
Provisions 88 - a8 - - -
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 1,967 1,056 3,023 1,977 1,058 3,035
Other non-current Liabilities - - - - B -
Current liahilities

Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 31 - 3l 1.877 - 1,877
- Trade pavables 1,424 - 1,424 1,189 - 1,189
= Dther financial liabilities 1,081 - 1,081 2,423 - 2423
Other current liabilities 17,154 - 17,154 19,132 - 19,132
Provisions 29 - 29 60 - 60

Total Equity and Liabilitics 52,650 2,648 55,298 46,722 2,631 49,353
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Equity reconciliation:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note As at 1 April 2015
Equity under Previous GAAP: 6,879
[N AS transition adjustments:
Fair valuation of property, plant and equipment i 3,776
Expected credit loss on trade and other receivables ii (1,145)
Tax impact on the above adjustments (1,058)
Total 8,452

Explanations for reconcilintion Equity:
(i) Under Ind AS, the fair value of property, plant and equipment have been used as deemed cost as on the date of transition as per Ind AS 101,
(ii) Under Ind AS, the loss allowances for trade and other receivables have been made under expected eredit loss model,

Total comprehensive income reconciliation:

Rs. m lakhs
Particulars Note As at 31 March 2016
Equity under Previous GAAP; 118
[nd AS transition adjustments:
Expected credit loss on trade receivables i (350)
Depreciation saving on account of fair valuation of property, plant and equipment il 367
Interest expense on Corporate Guarantee issued by parenl comapanies iii (36)
Tax impact on the above adjustments 2
Total 81

Explanations for reconciliation Equity and Total comprehensive income:

(1) Under Ind AS, the loss allowances for trade and other receivables have been made under expected credit loss model.

(ii) Under Ind AS, the fair value of property, plant and equipment have been used as deemed cost which resulted in change in depreciation on such
assels,

(i) Under Ind AS, interest expense has been recognised on the Corporate Guarantee issued to parent companies.

Cash flow statement:
There were no significant reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under Indian GAAP and those prepared under Ind AS.
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Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited
Notes to the accounts

PART I - BALANCE SHEET

3 Financial assets

Es, in lakhs

3.1 Investments

Asat
31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

As at
1 April 2015

Investments in equity instruments
Joint ventures (unguoted)
- Sical Sattva Rail Terminal Private Limited- 17,25,000

3 B 45 345
Shares (PY - 17,25,000 Shares) of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 245 2
345 345 345
Agprepate value of unguoted investments 345 345 345
Rs, in lakhs
. Asat As at Asat
32 Oth tfi i ts
iedbaiaha it o du s 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Margin money deposit with banks 326 34 10
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 62 43 52
418 77 62
Rs, in lakhs
4 Other non-current assets £8 ARt A Ay

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Unsecured, considered good
Other advances

- LIC fund for gratuity (refer note 25) 79 71 -
- Balance with Government Authorities 166 166 166
- Capital advances 580 632 390
825 869 356
Current assets
Ry, in lakhs
5 Inventories S at Asat ALt
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Diesel 4 3 1
4 3 1
6 Financial assets
Rs. in lakhs
6.1 Trade receivables Ayt Asat st
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured, considered good 5,203 4,114 4,129
Doubtful 1,145 1,496 1,146
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (1,145) (1.496) {1,146)
5.203 4,114 4,129
Rs. in lakhs
6.2 Cash and cash equivalents As at Asat Asat

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)
- in current accounts

134 431 288

Cash on hand 1 7 9
Other bank balances

- in matgin money deposit with banks (Refer note below) 355 578 327

490 1,016 624

Note: Fixed deposits with a original maturity period of less than 3 months are classified as "Cash and cash equivalents" and fixed deposits
with a original maturity period of greater than 3 months, but with a maturity date of less than 12 months from balance sheet date are classified

as "Other bank balances,”
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Rs. in lakhs
i Asat As at As at
6.3 Oth thi 1 as
€T CUrren namcial assets 3] March 20]7 31 Marl;h 2016 ] Ar“_il 2“15
Interest accrued on fixed deposils 5 6 10
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to related parties (refer note 26) 1,787 2,428 -
- Insurance claims 35 - 139
- staff advances 5 2 1
1,832 2,436 150
Rs, in lakhs
Asat As at As al
7 Current tax assets t
oNe) 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Advance income tax, net of provision for tax 529 472 165
Minimum Alternate Tax credit 1,027 748 722
1,556 1,220 887
Rs. in lakhs
8 Other current assets Asar AL S
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured, considered good
Other advances
- prepaid expenses 388 336 178
- advances for supply of goods and rendering of services 318 179 33
- Balance with Government Authorities 169 108 -
- statutory advances - A6 =
875 669 211
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Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited

Notes to the accounts

PART I - BALANCE SHEET
Note 9 Share capital (contd.)

(i) The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends

and the repayment of capital:

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held.
The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, excepl in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of
the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts if any, in proportion to their shareholding.

(ii) Details of shares held by the

Particulars

Equity shares with voting rights

Number of shares

As at 31 March 2017:

Sical Infra Assets Limited (Holding 7,26,90,000
As at 31 March 2016:
Sical Infra Assets Limited (Holding 7,26,90,000
(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Class of shares / Name of As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016

shareholder

Number of shares held

% holding in that class
of shares

Number of shares
held

% holding in that
class of shares

Equity shares with voting rights

Sical Infra Assets Limited
(Holding company and its nominees)

7,26,90,000

100%

7,26,90,000

100%

(iv) The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares
during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date. The details of shares issued for a consideration other than cash

are disclosed under note 9(b) and 9(c).

(v) There are no shares for which calls remain unpaid,



Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited
Statement of changes in equity

2.1

Other equity

Rs. in lakhs
Other reserves Other items of Equity
Pl R Corporate R:tn_im:d other attributable
premium g_uarnteu earnings comprehensive | to owners of
interest income the company |

Balance as at | April 2013 400 - 6,479 - 6,879
Hestated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 22 1,551 - 1.573
Total comprehensive income for the year . 56 &l - 137
Balance as on 31 March 2016 200 78 8,111 - 8,589
Balance as at | April 2016 400 78 8,111 - 8,589
Total comprehensive income for the vear - - 85 - 85
Corporate guarntee interest (refer note below) a 84 : 3 84
Balance as on 31 March 2017 400 162 83,196 = 8,758

Mote: As per Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the corporate guamntee given by the holding company to the banks in respect of the loans availed
by the Company qualifies as a 'financial guarantee contract’, No payment is mdae by the Company to its holding company and this is considered as
a deemed capital contribution by the heolding company, since the guarantce has been provided by the holding company in its capacity as a

shareholder.
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PART I - BALANCE SHEET

Non-current liabilities

Rs. in lakhs
As at As at As at
10 Fhusachl Lishlinies 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Borrowings
Secured
Debentures
1,000 (Previous year: Nil) 11% Secured listed NCD of Rs, 10 lakhs 10.000 _
each issued to RBL Bank Limited (refer note i) ’
Term loans
from banks
- UCO Bank - - 3,742
. UBI - - 1,427
- IDBI Bank - - 657
- Bank of baroda (refer note iia and iib) 6,124 6,624 a0
from other parties
- IFCI hmited (refer note iii) a 9.625 5
- Sundaram finance limited (refer note iv) 384 361 -
16,508 16,610 5916

Naotes:

(i) RBL Bank Limited

The Company has raised a sum of Rz, 10,000 lakhs through issue of 1000 Nos. Secured listed 11% Non-convertible debentures of Rs, 10 lakh each
against the security of -

() Exclusive first ranking mortgage on 0.60 acres of land siluated at Anupampattu Village, Ponneri Taluk, Thirovallur District, Tamil Nadu;

{b) Exclusive first mortgage charge on land (admeasuring 19.5 acres) & Building situated there on at Minjur, Chennai;

{c) First Pari passu mortgage charge along with existing charge holder on land (admeasuring around 2 248 acres) owned by SMART covering access
road to above mentioned Jand & building;

(d) Exclusive first charge over specific plant & machinery/ movable fixed assets  i.e 2 rakes & 1,045 Containers) and

(¢) Unconditional and irrevocable Corparate Guarantee of SICAL Logistics Limited.

The NCDs were allotted on 31 March 2017 after duly receiving the funds. The NCDs are listed on NSE effective 20 April 2017, Interest on NCDs is
payable semi-annually.

(iia) Bank of baroda

The Company has taken term loan of Rs 344 lakhs secured by way of hypothecation charge of assets created out of term loan from CFS division. The
loan is repayable in 21 monthly instalments. The interest rate as on 31 March 2017 is 11.40% (Previous year: Base Rate +1.75% being 11.40%)

(iib) Bank of baroda

The Company has taken term loan of Rs 9,405 lakhs against sccurity of equitable mortgage of land and building situated at CFS Minjur comprising of
35.50 acres of land and charge on assets created out of term loan, with a moratorium period of 12 months. Loan is repayable in step up 24 quarterly
instalments. The interest rate as on 31 March 2017 is 11.40% (Previous year: Base Rate +1,75% being 11.40%)

(iii) IFCI Limited

The Company has taken a term loan of Rs. 10,000 lakhs secured by exclusive charge on land measuring 20 acres situated at Minjur, Chennai created
by way of registered morigage and exclusive charge over 7 rakes in the name of the Company and plant & machinery of the Company and 2nd charge
on the security charged to working capital lenders, with a moratorium period of 12 months, Loan is repayable in 20 quarterly instalments. The loan has
been pre-closed during the current financial year.

(iv) Sundaram finance limited

The loan is secured by a charge on the purchased assets - trailors. The interest rate as on 31 March 2017 is 10.73% (Previous year: 10.75%),

(v) Currency swap and interest rate swap

The Company has entered into a currency swap and interest rate swap wherein the Rupee borrowing in converted into foreign currency borrowing i.e.
Euro and Company receives the fixed interest in INR and pays a fixed interest in Euro, to obtain a marginally lower interest rate than would have been
possible without the swap,

(vi) Non-convertible redeemable debentures in descending order of redemption:

Conversion/ Earliest date of
maturity redemption
Non convertible redeemable debentures issued to RBL Bank None Redemption 30 September 2018

Pariiculars Convertible into




Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited
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(vii) There are no defaults in the repayment of the principal loan and interest amounts with respect to the above loans.

(viii) The apgregate amount of long-term borrowings secured by personal guarantee and corporate guamtee of promoters amounts 1o Rs, 16,624 lakhs

(Previous year: Rs. 17,144 lakhs)

Rs. in lakhs

Asat

11 Provisions 31 March 2017

As al
31 March 2016

Asat
1 April 2015

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 23) a8 28 -
88 88 -
Rs. in lakhs
Asat As at As at
12 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 i April a1k
Deferred tax liability
Excess of depreciation allowed under Income Tax Act, 1961 over
depreciation as per books 5,367 4,920 4,786
Deferred tax assets
Expenditure covered under 43 B of Income-tax Act, 1961 (47) (30) (11}
Unabsorbed losses (1,692) (1.369) (1,338)
Provision for doubtful trade receivables (396) (498) {382)
3,232 3,023 3,035
Current liabilities
fts. in lakhs
As at As at Asat

13 Fi ial Liabiliti
inancial Liabilities 31 March 2017

31 March 2016

1 April 2015

13.1 Borrowings
Secured
Loans repayable on demand
Working capital loan
- Bank ol baroda (refer note 1) 1,619 3l 960
- UCO Bank - - 793
- IDBI Bank - - 124
1,619 31 1877
Note:

(i) Bank of Baroda

13.2

Working capital facility is secured by composite hypothecation agreement for hypothecation of entire raw materials, stock-in-process, stores & spares,
packing materials, finished goods, etc and Book-debts & trade advance of the company, both present & future of CF3 division. The interest rate as on
31 March 2017 is 11.40% (Previous year: Base Rate +1,75% being 11.40%),

(i) There are no defaulls in the repayment of the principal loan and intcrest amounts with respect to the above loans.

(iii) The aggregate amount of short-term borrowings scoured by personal guarantee and corporate guarntee of promoters amounts to Rs, 1,619 Takhs
(Previous year: Rs. 31 lakhs),

Ex. in lakhs

Asat
31 March 2017

As at As at

Trade payables
31 March 2016 1 April 2015

- Dues to micro and small enterprises (refer note below)
- Dues to other creditors*

2,008 1,424 1,189

2,098 1,424 1,189

Note: According to the information available with the Company, there are no dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the “The
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006”. The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office
memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its
customers the entrepreneur’s memorandum number as allocated after filling of the memorandum. Further there are no dues payable to micro and small
scale industries (previous year: Rs Nil).

*Refer note 26 for the amount payable to the related parties,
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Rs. in lakhs
2 Eal el Asat As at Asat
B Ciher aancaatlishikie 31 March2017 31 March2016 1 April 2015
Current maturities of long-term debt*
Term loans
from banks
- JCO Bank - - 1,234
- UB] - - 500
- IDBI Bank - - 248
- Bank of baroda 300 520 204
from other parties
- IFCI hmited - 375 -
- Sundaram finance limited 128 99 3
Others
- Accrued salaries and benefits 61 58 53
- Creditors for capital goods 54 29 31
743 1,081 2,423
*The details of interest rate, repayment terms, nature and value of securities furnished are disclosed under note 10,
Rs. inlakhs
14  Other current liahilities As at As at Asat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Dues to related parties
- Sical Infra Assets Limited (refer note 26) 16,568 16,581 16,587
- Sical Logistics Limited (refer note 26) - - 1,881
Others
Statutory dues 30 48 20
Creditors for expenses 786 525 644
17,384 17,154 19,132
Rs. in lakhs
15 Provisions bt it i
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Provision for employee benefits
- Compensated absence 19 27 36
- Gratuity (refer note 25) 5 2 24
24 29 6l




Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited
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PART Il - STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Rs. in lakhs

Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Sale of services

Income from integrated logistics services 19,583 19,376
Taxes and deductions
Less: Service tax (1,800) (1.784)
17,783 17,792
Rs. in lakhs
it cima For the year ended  For the vear ended

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Interest income
[nterest income on deposits with banks 51 32
[nterest income on inter-corporate deposit (refer note 26) 244 10
Interest on IT Refund - =
Profit on sale of fixed assets - 28
Provision no Longer required writien back 348 -
643 70
Rs. in lakhs
Cost of services For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Cargo handling charges 1,205 1,080
Rail freight 4,570 5.735
Terminal expenses 4635 544
Containers related charges 520 485
Road transportation charges 1,704 1,759
Equipment, vehicle running and hire expenses 1,908 1,729
Repairs and maintenance
- plant and machinery 225 176
Power 661 in
Stores consumed 4 1
Rake hire charges 30 73
Incentives to customers 1,435 1,303
Other direct expenses 110 122
12,927 13,518
Rs. in lakhs

Employee benefits expense

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Salaries and wages 761 576
Contribution to provident and other funds 47 42
Stall welfare expenses 79 63
887 681

Rs. in lakhs

Finance costs

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Interest expense

- term loan 2310 1,280
Other borrowing costs 148 120
Interest on inter-corporale guarntee (refer note 26) B4 36

2,542 1,456
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Rs. in lakhs
Other sxyemses For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Rent (refer note 27) 71 62
Security charges 134 124
Payment to auditor's
a. for audit 8 8
b. for tax audit 2 2
c. for reimbursement of expenses 1 2
Travelling and convéyance 168 149
Legal, professional and consultancy 301 240
Rates and taxes 23 17
Repairs and maintenance
- buildings 13 17
- vehicles 10 9
- others 38 48
Communication expenses 42 43
Insurance 101 67
Provigion for doubtful debts - 350
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 28) 24 33
Miscellaneous expenses 201 202
1,137 1.373
Rs. in lakhs
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Current income tax:
In respect of the current period - 26
In respect of the current period 209 (12)
Minimum alternate tax credit entitlement - (26)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

209 {12)




Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited
Notes to the accounts

PART I - STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the
income before income taxes is summarized below:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit before income laxes 294 69
Enacted tax rates in India 34.61% 34.61%
Computed expected tax expense 102 24
Tax impact on carried forward losses 69 12
Expenses disallowed for tax purpose 38 (48)
Total income tax expense 209 (12)

The 1ax rates under Indian Income Tax Act, for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 is 34.61%.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax relates to the following:

Rs. in lakhs
For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Property, plant and equipment 447 134
Expenditure covered under 43 B of Income-tax Act, 1961 (17) (19)
Unabsorbed losses (323) (11)
Provizion for doubtful trade receivables 102 (116)

Net deferred tax expense/ (gain) 209 (12)
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Commitments and contingent habilities

Rs. in lakhs

Asat

Particulars 31 March 2017

As at
31 March 2016

Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debt (other than those where in the possibility of any
economic outflow in settlement is remote)

= Direct tax maltters - 238
- Indirect tax matters 523 523
- Legal matters 29 24
Guaraniees given by bankers/letter of credit for performance of contracts & others 2,723 2,982

Earnings per share (EPS)
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted carnings per share:

(Figures in rupees excepd number of shares)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit after taxation as per statement of profit and loss 85 81
Less: Dividends on shares and tax thereon - -
Net profit adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for calculation of diluted EP'S 85 8l
Particulars b Ayt
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 7.26.90,000 7,26,90,000
Add: Weighted average number of equity shares issued during the year - -
Number of weighted average shares considered for caleulation of diluted earnings per share 7,26,90,000 7,26,20,000
Earpings / (loss) per share:
Basic 0.12 0.11
Diluted 012 0.11
Gratuity plan
The following table scts out the status of the unfunded gratuity plan as required under Ind AS 19 'Employee henefits'
Reconciliation of the projected henefit abligations
Rs; i lakhs
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Change in projected benefit obligation

Present value of obligation as at beginning of the vear ] 87
Acquisition adjustment = .
Current service cost 13 14
Interest cost ¥ 7
Benelits paid (8) (3)
Actuarial loss/ (gain) on obligation (9) (13)
Obligations at year end 23 90
Change in plan assets
Rs. in lakhs

Particulars ABat As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Fair value of plan assets as at beginning of the vear 71 63
Expected return on plan assets 6 3
Contributions 9 g8
Benefits paid (7) (3)
Plans assets at year end, at fair value 79 71
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Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets: Rs. in lakhs
Particulars As at Asat
31 Mareh 2017 31 March 2016

Closing obligations (93) (90)

Closing fair value of plan assets 79 71
Asset / (liability) recognised in the balance sheet {14) (19

Gratuity cost for the year Rs. in lakhs
: For the year ended  For the yvear ended
Ghaldiioon iz 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Service cost 13 14
Interest cost 7 1
Expected return on plan assets (&) (5)
Actuarial loss/(gain) (%) {13}
Net gratuity cost 5 3

Assumptions

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2017

For the vear ended
31 Mareh 2016

Discount rate
Estimated rate of return on plan assets
Salary increase
Aftrition rate
Up to 30 years
31 -44 vears
Above 44 years

7.40%
7.50%
10.00%

0.01%
0.00%
0.00%

7.90%
8.50%
10.00%

0.01%
0.00%
0.00%

The estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors

such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

Information of plan assets, defined benefit obligation and experience adjustments: Rs. in lakhs
As at and for the vear ended 31 March

Particulars 2013 2014 2016 2017

Present value of the defined

benefit obligations (42) 69 0 3)

Fair value of plan assets 10 435 71 74

surplus/ (deficit) (32) (6) (19} (14)

Experience adjustment on plan

assets [gain / (loss)] ) ! E =

Experience adjustment on plan 5 4 a3) 8)

liabilities [{gain) / loss]

As of 31 March 2017, every percentage point increase / decrease in salary growth rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation by approximately Rs. 2

takh,

As of 31 March 2017, every percentage point increase / decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation by approximately Rs, 1,80

lakh.

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit

obligation by one percentage, keeping all other actuarial assumplions constant,
26 Related parties disclosures

(i) List of related parties:

Name of Company Relationship
Halding Company & Group
Sical Logistics Limited Ultimate Holding Company

Sical Infra Assets Limited (SIALY) Holding Company
Sical Bangalore Logistics Parks Limited (SBLPL') Fellow subsidiary
Sical Sattva Rail Terminal Privale Limited (SSRTPL') Joint Venture
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(ii)

(i)

(iv)

Details of key managerial personnel:

Name of personnel Designation
Mr. M, Srinivasan Whole time director
Mr. Vinod Shenoy Chief Financial Officer

Mr V Radhakrishnan

Company Secratary

Details of direcotrs of the Company:

Name of personnel

Designation

Mr, M. Srinivasan

Mr. Kush § Desai

Mr, Sunil Sudhakarrao Deshmukh
Mr. Rathnakara Hegde

Mr. 5. Ravinaravanan

Mr, V.P. Ravi

Mr. Prasanna Kasturi

Mr V Radhakrishnan

Whole time director

Director

Dircctor

Independent director

Independent director

Director (upto 23 September 2016)

Director (appointed with effect from 23 September 2016)

COI'HI]EI'IY secretary

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Rs. in lakhs

Key management

personnel

Particulars Joint venture  Holding Company
Companies & group
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Receiving of services

SSRTPL 142 =

SLL - 730

SIAL - 996
Rent paid

SLL - 42
Rendering of services

SLL - 222
Loans and advance given

SBLPL - 17
Loans and advance repaid

SLL 658

SIAL - 13
Interest on inter-corporate guarntee

SIAL - 42

5LL - 42
Interest income on inter-corporate deposit

SLL - 244

Managerial remuneration

Particulars

Joint venture Holding Company

Key management

Companies & sroup personnel
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Receiving services

S35RTPL 228 - -

SLL - 685 -

SIAL - 19
Rent paid

SLL - 38 -
Rendering of services

SLL - 56 -
Repayment of loans and advarice

SIAL - 6 -

SLL - 1,881 -
Loans and advance given

5LL - 2428 -
Interest an inter-corporate guarntee

SlAL - 28 %

SLL - 18 &
Interest income on inter-corporate deposit

SLL 10
Managerial remuneration - - 21
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(v) Amonnt outstanding as at the balance sheet date: Rs. in lakhs
Partiil Joint venture  Holding Company Key management
— Companies & group personnel

Other current liabilities

As at 31 March 2017

SIAL - 16,568 -
Other current financial assets

SLL - 1,770 =

SBLPL 3 17 =
Creditors for expenses

SIAL . 45 .
Trade payables

SIAL Z 415 5

SSRTPL 252 = -
Particulars Joint venture  Holding Company Key management

Companies & proup personnel

Other current habilities
SLAL

Other current financial assets
SLL

Trade payables
SSRTPL

As at 31 March 2016

16,581

- 2,428

Leases

The Company has taken on lease office premises under cancelable operating lease agreements. The company intends to rencw such leases in the normal

course of business.

Rs. in lakhs
. For the year ended  For the year ended

1
.Pa_mcu ard 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Rent 71 62

Corporate social responsibility
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR committes has been formed by the company. The areas for CSR aetivily is promoting
education. The funds were utilized through the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013,

Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
lo finance the Company's operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term
deposits that derive direetly from its operations

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s primary focus is to foresee
the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its finaneial performance. The Company's exposure ta credit
risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to & financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers, The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying value of the
financial assets. The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is to prevent losses in financial assets, The Company assesses the credit quality of
the counlerpartics, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit
terms in the normal course of business, On account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss madel to assess the impairment
loss or gain. The expected credit loss model takes into account available external and internal credit risk Tactors and the Company's historical
experience for customers.

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues generated from top customer and top five customers:

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 Mar 2017 - 31 Mar 2016
Revenue from top customer 19.72% 12.86%
Revenue from top five customers 35.60% 31.24%

One customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenue and trade receivables for the year ended 31 March 2017,
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Credit risk exposure
The allowance for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended 31 March 2017 was Rs. 1,145 lakhs.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by international and
domestic credit rating agencies,

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities 1o meet obligations when due. The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement
management. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under
commilted credit lines, Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows, In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management,

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017
Less than 1 year 1-2years  More than 2 vears
Borrowings 10, 13.1 and 13.3 624 1,767 14,741
Trade payable 13.2 2,098 - S
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commadity risk. Financial instrumenis
affected by market risk primarily include borrowings and derivative financial instruments,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in markel interest rates,
The Company’s exposure o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating
interest rates,

Joint ventures

The Company has a 50% interest in Sical Sattva Rail Terminals Private Limited ('SSRTPLY, a joint venture involved in handling container rail terminal
at Madipakkam. The Company's interest in SSRTPL is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated finaneial statements, Summarised
Tinancial information of the joint venture, based on its Ind AS financial statements are sel out helow:

Rs. in lakhs
As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Assers
Non-current asscts 225 257
Current assets 248 237
Liubilities
Non current liabilities 19 24
Current labilities 251 171
Income 70 107
Expenses (including taxes) 179 185

Disclosure on specified bank notes

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or ather denornination note as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated 31 March
2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes ('SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8 November 2016 1o 30 December 2016, the
denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification is given below:

Rs,

Particulars SBNs* Other Total
denomination notes

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 70,000 1,590,887 2,60,887
(+) Permitted receipts - 18,53,580 18,353,580
(-) Permitted payments {2.000) {15,97,822) (ll 5,99,822)
(=) Amount deposited in Banks (68,000) (2,73,827) (3.41,827)
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 - 1,72,818 1,72.818

*For the purposes of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India,
in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 5.0, 3407(E), dated the & November 2016,
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Financial instruments
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by calegories as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are as follows:
Rs. in lakhs

Carrying value Fair value

Particulars Note As at Asat Asat As at
' 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Financial Assets
Amortised cost

Investments in equity instruments of joint venture 3l 345 345 345 345
Other non-current financial assets 32 418 77 418 77
Trade receivables 6.1 5,203 4,114 5,203 4114
Cash and cash equivalents 6.2 450 1,016 490 1,016
Other current financial assets 6.3 1,832 2,436 1,832 2.436
Total financial assets 8,288 7.988 3,288 7.988

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

Borrowings 10,13.1 and 13.3 18,870 17,722 17,722 17,722
Trade payables 13.2 2,098 1,424 1,424 1,424
Total financial liabilities 20,968 19,146 19,146 19,146

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, Other current and non-current financial assets, trade receivables and payables and
borrowings approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shori-term maturitics of these instruments.

The Company is primarily engaged in providing integrated logistics services which is considered as single business segment in terms of segment
reporting as per Ind AS 108, There being no services rendered outside India there are no separate geographical segments to be reported on.

On 15 October 2016 , the Board of Directors of the Company approved a Scheme of Arrangement [Demerger] for hiving off its Bangalore Inland
Container Depot ('ICD") and transfer the same to the fellow subsidiary Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the respective companies and National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai, The rationale behind the proposal is to ensure
sustainable long term growth, profitability, market share and continuous customer service, focused management and geographical attention 1o meet
competition, regulatory environment and to mitigate risk thereby enabling the tespective entities to to productively utilize their resources and
achieve cost and operational cfficiencies.

Corresponding figures for the previous year presented have been regrouped, where necessary, to conform to the current year's classification.
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Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited
Balance sheet

Particulars

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Financial Assets
- Other non-current financial assets
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Financial Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share capital

Other Equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other current liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the accounts

Note

21

4.1

1
21012

Ry, in lakhs
As at
31 March 2017

10.00
115.23
125.23

1.00
0.08
1.08
126.31

1.00

1.00

125.31

125.31
126.31

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our reporl of even date attached
for CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number : 0049158
LLP No : 5200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner

Membership No. 11203
Chennai

Date; 9 May 2017

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited

Kush 8 Desai
Director

Chennai
Date; 9 May 2017

Sumith R Kamath



Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Particulars

Cash flows from operating activitics
Profit before tax
Operating cash fMow before working capital changes
Changes in
- Current/Mon current financial assets
- Current/Non current assets
- Current/MNon current financial labilities
- Current/Mon current liabilities
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid
Cash generated from operations [A]

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of fixed assets (Including Capital Work in Progress)
Net cash generated used in investing activities [B)

Cash Mows from financing activities

Proceeds issue of shares

Proceeds from parent and group companies

Net cash generated from financing activities [C]

Increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- N current accounts

Total cash and cash equivalents

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the accounts

As per our report of even date altached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountanis

Firm registration number : 0049158
LLF Mo : 8200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner

Membership No. 11205
Chennai

Date: 9 May 2017

Rs, in lakhs
For the year ended
31 Mar 2017

Note

(10.00)
(0.08)

(10.08)

(10.08)

(115.23)
(115.23)

1.00
125.31

126.31

100

1.00

1.00
1.00

2to 12

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited

Kush S Desai
Director

Chennai
Date: 9 May 2017

Sumith R Kamath



Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.2

14

Company overview and Significant Accounting Policies

Company overview

Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited ('SBLPL') has been incorporated on 31 May 2016 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Sical Infra Assets Limited ('SIAL’).
The Company is incorporated to construct and operale state-of-art rail terminal facility, to develop container yards, warehouses and bonded warchouses in the
terminal and also function as Private Rail Terminal ('PFT") / Inland Container Depots ('ICDs')/ Container Freight Stations ('CFSs"for the purpose of storage of
containers which are meant for domestic as well for EXIM purpose. Since the commercial operations of the Company is yet to start, the Company does not have
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017,

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors on 9 May 2017.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the acerual basis, the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (' Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issucd by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

These financial statcments are the company's first Ind AS financial statements, The company has adopted all the Ind AS standards.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification, An asset is treated as current when it is:
P Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

B Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

P Cash or cash cquivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when!

B It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

B It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

B There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period The Group classifies All ather
liabilities as non-current.

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are classificd as non-current assets and liabilitics,
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis, Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant arcas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Income taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be paid or recovered in
connection with uncertain tax positions, Also refer to Note 1.12.

(it) Property, plant and equipment: Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the company. The charge in respect of
periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected use fullife and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful
lives and residual values of company's assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as
changes in technology.

it} Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilitics, disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenucs and expenses for the reporting period, Specifically, the Company
estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analyzing historical payment patterns, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness and
current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances

may be required,



Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.5

1.6

1.7

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
expenditures directly atiributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation: The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line basis from the date the assets are ready
for intended use,

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date,

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment, Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic henefits
associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or disposition of the asset
and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the stalement of profit and loss,

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment oulstanding as of each reporting date and the cost of property, plant and equipment not
ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress,

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.e. the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national curreney of India, which is the functional currency of the Company.

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value, Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial
assets recorded at fair valug through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets, Loans and borrowings and payable are recognised net of
directly attributable transactions costs,

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost: A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to colleet contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (SPPI).

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets, Financial
assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the cffective interest method, less any
impairment loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and cligible
current and non-current assets,

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or
penalty on the principal.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks, net of outstanding book
overdrafts that are repayable on demand, and are considered part of the Company’s cash management system.

(it) Financial liohilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value,
and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the assct or transfer the liability takes place either:

P In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

B [n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.



Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the yvear ended 31 March 2017

1.1

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

B Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

B Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

B Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment

(1) Financial assets: In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss. The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowanee on trade receivable.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the
eredit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months afier the reporting date,

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- looking estimates, AL every reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is
reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and lass. The balance sheet presentation for various finaneial instruments is deseribed below;

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie, as an integral part of the measurement of
those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment
allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b) Nen-financlal assels: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non
financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss,

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the recoverable. Losses are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss and reflected in an allowance account, When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the rélevant amounts are
written off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through statement of profit and loss,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined below) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of asscts (the “cash-generating unit™).



Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited
Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 31 March 2017

1.1

1.1

11

1.2

1.2

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past ¢vent, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset,
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Finance income and cxpense
Finance income consisis of interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss, using the effective
interest method.

Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss using the effective
interest method,

Income tax
Income tax comprises currenit and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates 1o items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income,

fa) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities based on the taxable income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period, The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and liability simultaneously,

(B) Deferred income tax: Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, Deferred income tax assets and labilities are recognized for
deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when
the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects
neither accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented, The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares arc adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule I11, unless otherwise
stated.



Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited
Notes to the accounts

PART I - BALANCE SHEET

2 Financial assets Rs. in lakhs
2.1 Other non current financial assets As at
31 March 2017

Security deposits 10.00

10.00

Rs. in lakhs
3 Other non-current assets As at
31 March 2017

Capital advances 115.23

115.23

Current assels

4 Financial assets Rs. in lakhs
As at

4.1  Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2017

Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)

- in current accounls

1.00

{0

5 Other current assets

As at
31 March 2017

Unsecured, considered good

Other advances

- Balance with Government Authorities

0.08

0.08




Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited
Notes to the accounts

PART 1 - BALANCE SHEET

6 Share capital

AN NGBS Issued, Su!}strih:d and
Paid-up
Particulars
Number of | Face | Total value Number of Total value

share value | (Rs. In Lakhs) share (Rs. In Lakhs)
Current Year 2016-17
Equity Shares 10
Issued during the year 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2017 10,000 .00 10,000 1.00

i The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the

repayment of capital:

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, exeept
in case of interim dividend. [n the event of hquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of all preferential amaounts if any, in proportion to their shareholding

ii Shares of the company held by holding company:

Particulars Equity shares with voting rights
Number of shares
Asat 31 March 2017
Sical Infra Assets Limited 100%
iii Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:
Class of shares / Name of sharcholder As at 31 March 2017
Number of % holding
shares held
Equity shares with vating rights
Sical Infra Assets Limited 10,000 100.00%

iv The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equily shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares from the date if

incorporation nor has issued shares for consideration other than cash.

v There are no shares for which calls remain unpaid.

Current liabilities

Rs. in lakhs

7 Other current liabilities

As at
31 March 2017

Dues to related parties
- S1cal Logistics Limited (refer note 6)

- Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited (refer note 6)

107.93
17.38

125.31
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(i)

(ii)

(ii1)

(i)

Commitments and contingent liabilities Ry in lakhs

As at

Particulars 31 March 2017

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debt (other than those where in the possibility of any

ecinomin outflow in settlement is remote)

Estimated amount of capital commitments not provided for -

Related parties disclosures

List of related parties:

Name of Company Relationship

Holding Company & Group

Sical Logistics Limited Ultimate Holding Company
Sical Infra Assets Limited (STAL") Holding Company

Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited (SMART)  Fellow subsidiary

Sical Sattva Rail Terminal Private Limited (‘'SSRTPL") Joint Venture of SMART
Details of directors of the Company:

Name of personnel Designation

Mr, R Ram Mohan Director

Mr. Kush 5 Desai Director

Mr. Sumith R Kamath Director

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

By in lakhs
Particulars Holding Company
& group
Loans and advance received
SLL 107.93
SMART 1798
Issue of shares
SIAL 1.00
Amount outstanding as at the balance sheet date:
Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Holding Company
& group
Other current Habilities
SLL 107.93
SMART 17.38

Segment Reporting
The Company is yet to commence ils commercial operations and hence the same is not applicable,
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On 15 October 2016 , the Board of Directors of the Company approved a Scheme of Arrangement [Demerger] for vesting of the
Bangalore Inland Container Depot ((1CDY) business of Sical Multimodal and Rail Transport Limited subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the respective companies and National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai. The rationale behind the proposal is to
ensure sustainable long term growth, profitability, market share and continuous customer serviee, focused managemeént and
geographical allention to meel competition, regulatory environment and to mitigate risk thereby enabling the respective entities to to
productively utilize their resources and achieve cost and operational efficiencies.

Disclosure on specified bank notes

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R.
308(E) dated 31 March 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes ('SBN") held and transacted during the period from 8 November
2016 to 30 December 20186, the denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification is given below:

As.
Other
Particulars SBNs* denomination Total
noies
Closing cash in hand as on 8§ Novemnber 2016 - i g
(+) Permitted receipts = & 2
(=) Permitted payments = . =
(-) Amount deposited in Banks = ” .
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 = - -

*For the purposes of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the
Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 8,0, 3407(E), dated the 8 November
2016.

for CNGSN & Associates LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountanis Sical Bangalore Logistics Park Limited
Firm registration number : 00491358

LLF Mo : 8200036

Kush S Desai Sumith R Kamath
Director Director

CN GANGADARAN

Parner

Membership Mo.; 11205

Chennai Chennai

Date: 9 May 2017 Date: 9 May 2017
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Sical Saumya Mining Limited
Balance sheet

Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Financial Assets
- Trade receivables
- Other non-current financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)

Current assets
Financial Assets
- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents
= Other current financial assets
Other current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share capital

Other Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Botrowings

Current liabilities
Finaneial Liabilities
- Trade payables
- Other financial liablities
Other current liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)

Teotal Equity and Liabilities

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the accounts

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached
for CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number ; 0049155
LLP No : 5200036

CN GANGADARAN
Fartner
Membership No. 11203

Chennai
Date: 10 May 2017

Note

L |
22

ad

4.1
4.2
4.3

8.1

2.1
8.2
10

1
2t024

Rs. in lakhs

As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
g 67.51
607.30 258.00

- 7.42
607,30 33293
3,727.89 1,433.93
415 3.39
5,735.30 8,525.67
137.81 48.16
9.605.15 10,011.15
10,212.45 10,344.08
1.00 1.00
146,50 31.93
147.50 32.93
4.500.00 2,404.00
4,900.00 2,404.00
211.70 49,60
2.868.00 1,596.00
2.050.62 6,238.61
34.63 22.94
3,164.95 7.907.15
10,212.45 10,344.08

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Saumys Mining Limited

R Ram Mohan

Date: 10 May 2017

Sumith R Kamath



Sical Saumya Mining Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total Income

Expenses

Cost of services
Finance costs
Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense
Current tax

Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement

Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Note

11
12

13
14
15

Rs. in lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 Mar 2016
12,684.69 2,922.46
2232.31 28.53
12,907.00 2,950.99
11.732.62 2.803.63
1,039.31 108.71

9.49 0.22

12,781.42 2,912.58
125.58 3841

34.63 22.94
7.42 (7.42)

83.53 22.89




Sical Saumya Mining Limited
Statement of profit and loss

Particulars

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plan acturial gains/ (losses)

Others

Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income for the period

Attributable to:
Owners of Company
MNon- Controlling Interests

Earnings per equity share

(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the accounts

Note

17

1
2to24

Rs. in lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 Mar 2016
83.53 22.89

B3.53 22.89

83530 228.90

835.30 228.90

The notes referred 1o above form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number : 0049158
LLP No : §200036

CN GANGADARAN
Partner
Membership No. 11205

R Ram Mohan
Director

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Sical Saumya Mining Limited

Sumith R Kamath
Director



Sical Saumya Mining Limited
Cash Flows Statement

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 12558 3841
Adjustments:
Interest and finance charges 1,008.22 103.50
Interest income (22231) (28.33)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 911.49 113.38
Changes in
- Trade receivables (2.226.45) (1,501.44)
- Current/Non current financial assets - =
- Current/Non current assets {89.63) (48.16)
- Current/Non current liabilitics (4,187.99) 6,238.61
- Trade payables 162.10 49,60
Cash generated from operations (5,430.50) 4,851.99
Income taxes paid (22.94) -
Cash generated from operations [A] = (5,453.44) 4.851.99
Cash flows from investing activities
Advances received from/(given to) subsidiary 8,522.26 (8,522.26)
Advances given to holding company (5,692.39) -
Bank deposit (388.80) (261.41)
Interest income on fixed deposits 222.31 28.53
Net cash generated used in investing activities [B| 2,663.38 (8,755.14)
Cash Nows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares - 1.00
Proceeds from long term borrowings 6.000.00 4,000.00
Repayment of long term borrowings (2,232.00) -
Finance cost (977.18) (94.46)
Net cash generated from financing activities [C] 2,790.82 3,906.54
Increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C+D) 0.76 3.39
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3.39 -

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4.15 3.39
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Particulars Note

Components of cash and cash equivalents 4.2
Balences with banks

- in current accounts

Total cash and cash equivalents
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The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements.
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1.5

Company overview and Significant Accounting Policies

Company overview

Sical Saumya Mining Limited ('SSML' or 'the Company’) is a joint venture between Sical Logistics Limited (‘Sical’) and Saumya Mining Limited. The
Company has been incorporated 2 July 2015, to execute the overburden removal and transportation contracts at Odisha mines.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors on 10 May 2017,

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial stalements arc prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act)) (to the extent notified) and guidclines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(SEBI). The Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016,

These financial statements are the company's first Ind AS financial statements. The company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoptions were
carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting
Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Sec133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companics (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which
was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and deseriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 1.15.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
P Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

P Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

B Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

» [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

B Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period The Group classifies All other
liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asscts, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis, Revisions to accounting estimaltes are recognized in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following
notes:

(i} Income taxes: Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including the amount expected to be paid or recovered
in connection with uncertain tax positions. Also refer to Note 1.15.

(i§) Other estimates: The preparation of financial statements involves cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the reporting period.
Specifically, the Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable hy analyzing historical payment patierns, customer concentrations,
customer eredit-worthiness and current economic trends. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, additional allowances may be required,

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized on accrual method on rendering of services when the significant terms of the arrangement are enforceable, services have been
delivered and the collectability is reasonably assured.
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Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (i.e. the
“functional currency™). The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the
Company.

Financial instruments

All financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets. Loans and borrowings and payable are
recognised net of directly attributable transactions costs.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost: A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if hoth of the following conditions are met:

(a) the financial assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to callect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (SPPI),

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months after the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets.
Financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade receivables, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and
eligible current and non-current assets,

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in banks and demand deposits with banks which can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice
or penalty on the principal.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and in fixed deposits with a original maturity period
of less than 12 months from balance sheet date are considered as a part of the Company’s cash management system.

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost: Financial liabilities at amortised cost represented by trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair
value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to scll the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

B In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

B In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would usc the asset in its highest and best use,

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unohservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described

ag follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

P Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
P Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
® Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (bascd on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whaole)
at the end of each reporting period.

The Company enters into cerlain derivative contracts such as interest rate swaps and currency swaps to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges,
Such contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. Such derivative financial instruments arc initially recognised at [air value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,
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1.10

Impairment

(i} Financial assets: In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss, The Company follows ‘simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivable,

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk, Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase
in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if
credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.

Lifetime ECLs are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 month ECL
is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the statement of profit and loss, This amount
is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

Financial assets measured at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivable: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.c. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the assel meets write off criteria, the group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

b) Non-financial assets: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a non financial asset or a group of non
financial assets is impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the amount of impairment loss.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the recoverable, Losses are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss and reflected in an allowance account, When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant
amounts are written off, If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through statement of profit and loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (as defined belaw) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets ar groups of assets
(the “cash-generating unit™).

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outfllow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to setile the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an
asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured relinbly,

Finance income and expense

Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of profit and loss, using the
effective interest method.

Finance expenses consist of interest expensc on loans and borrowings. Borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss using the
effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses arc reported on a net basis.
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Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

(@) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authoritics based on the taxable income for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and applicable for the period. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities,
where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assel and
liability simultaneously.

(b) Deferred income fax: Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amount in financial statements,
except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and affects neither accountling nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction,

Deferred income tax asset are recognized Lo the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized,

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecied to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit afier tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive polential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity
shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently
for each period presented.

Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule TII, unless
otherwise stated,

First- time adoption of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

The Company's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS's notified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The adoption of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, using 1 April
2015 as the transition date, Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS standards and interpretations that are effective for the first Ind AS Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 March 2017, be applied consistently and retrospectively for all fiscal years presented,

All applicable Ind AS have been applied consistently and retrospectively wherever required. The resulting difference between the carrying amounts of the
assets and liabilities in the financial statements under both Ind AS and Indian GAAP as of the Transition Date have been recognized directly in equity at
the Transition Date.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has availed itself of certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS 101 as explained
below:

(a) Exceptions from full retrospective application:

A. Estimates exception: Upon an assessment of the estimates made under previous GAAP, the management is of the opinion that there was no need to
revise such estimates under Ind AS, except where estimates were required by Ind AS's and not required by previous GAAP.

(b) Reconciliations:

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences ariging from the transition from Indian GAAP to Ind AS in
accordance with Ind AS 101:

- equity as at 31 March 2016:and
- explanation of material adjustments to cash flow statements.
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Reconciliation of equity

Ry wn lakhs
As at 31 March 2016
Particulars Previous Eﬂ’u—:t_of .
GAAP transition Ind AS
tolnd AS
Assels
Non-current assets
Financial Assets
- Trade recetvables 89.77 (22.26) 67.51
- Other non eurrent financial assets 238.00 - 258.00
Deferred tax assets (net) - 742 742
Current assets
Financial Assets
- Trade receivables 1,433,693 - 1,433.93
- Cash and cash equivalents 3.39 - 339
- Other current financial asscts 852567 - 852567
Other current assets 48.16 - 48.16
Total assets 10,358.92 (14.84) 10,344.08
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital L0 . 1.00
Other equity 46.77 (14.84) 31.93
Total equity 47.97 (14.84) 32.93
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings 240400 - 2,404.00
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Trade payables 49,60 - 49,60
- Other financial liabilities 1,596.00 - 1,596.00
Other current habilities 623861 - 6,218 61
Current tax liabilities (net) 2294 - 2294
Total Equity and Liabilities 10.358.92 (14.84) 1034408
Equity reconciliation:
Particulars Note As at 31 March 2016
Equity under Previous GAAT: 46.77
IND AS transition adjustments;
Effect of discounting on trade receivables i (22.26)
Tax impact on the above adjustments 742
Total 31.93

Explanations for reconciliation Equity:
(i) Discounting of retention money under Ind AS, resulted in reduction of trade receivables, which will be recognised as interest income
over the retention period.

Cash flow statement:
There were no significant reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under Indian GAAP and those prepared under Ind AS.
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Non-current assets

2 Financial Assets Rs. in lakhs
2.1 Trade receivables Asat faai
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Unsecured, considered good - 67.51

- 67.51

Rs. in lakhs

22 Other non current financial assets e AN
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Margin money deposit with banks 607.30 258.00
607.30 258.00
Rs, in lakhs
As at As at

3 Deferred tax assets (net)

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Deferred tax assets

FFair valuation of trade receivables i 7.42
i 7.42
Current assets
4 Financial Assets
A5, in lakhs
4.1 Trade receivables Anat aAeat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Unsecured, considered good 3,727.89 1.433.93
Daoubtful a i
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables - -
3,727.89 1,433.93
Rs. in lakhs
As at As at

42 Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)

- in current accounts

4.15

339

4.15

3.39

Ncm?: _Fix::d deposits with a original maturity period of less than 3 months are classificd as "Cash and cash equivalents” and fixed deposits with
a original maturity period of greater than 3 months, but with a maturity date of less than 12 months from balance sheet date are classified as

"Other bank balances. "
Rs. in lakhs
4.3 Other current financial assets 31 M ol ki
arch 2017 31 March 2016
Interest acerued on fixed deposits 4291 3.41
Unsecured, considered pood
- Sical Logistics Limited (refer note 18) 5,692.39 -
- Sical Iron Ore Terminals Limited (refer note 18) - 8,522.26
5,733.30 8.525.67
Ry, in lakhs
-« As at As at

5 Other current assets

31 March 2017

31 March 2016

Unsecutred, considered good
Other advances

- prepaid expenses 8936 4531
- statutory advances 48.45 2.85
137.81 48.16




Sical Saumya Mining Limited
Notes to the accounts

PART I - BALANCE SHEET

6 Share capital

Authioilied Issued, Su!}scrihed and
Paid-up
Particulars o
Number of | Face | Total value Number of T'otal value
share value| (Ks In Lakhs) share {Rs. In Lakhs)
Previous Year 2013-16
Equity Shares : 10
Opening balance as on | Apr 2015 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Increase during the year - #
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2016 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
Current Year 2016-17
Equity Shares 10
Opening balance as on 1 Apr 2016 10,000 1.00 16,000 1.00
Increase during the year : =
Closing balance as on 31 Mar 2017 10,000 1.00 10,000 1.00
i The rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and the

repayment of capital:

The Company has one class of equity shares having & par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The
dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensu ing Annual General Meeting, exeept
in case of interim dividend, In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the remaining asseis of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts if any, in proportion ta their shareholding.

ii Shares of the company held by holding company:

Particulars Equity shares with voting rights

Number of shares

Asat 3] March 2017;

Sical Logisties Limited 6,500

As at 31 March 2016:

__S'i'gal Logistics Limited 6,500

iii Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Class of shares / Name of shareholder As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Number of % holding Number of Yo
shares held shares held holding

Equity shares with voting rights

Sical Logisties Limited 6,500 65.00% 6,500 65.00%
Saumya Mining Ltd 3,500 315.00% 3,500 35.00%

The Company has not allotted any fully paid up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of equity shares during the period
2015-16 and 2016-17 [since the date of incorporation] immediately preceding the balance sheet date nar has issued shares for consideration other than

cash,

There are no shares for which calls remain unpaid.
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Other equity
Rs. in lakhs
! ; Equity

Particulars Other reserves Retained Other 'tem‘s Of_ other attributable

earnings comprehensive income o GwaiEs ol

Balance as at 31 March 2016 - 4677 = 46.77
Restatement on account of IND AS adoption (refer note 1.15) 9.04 (23.88) - (14,84)
Balance as on 31 March 2016 9.04 22.89 - 31.93
Balance as at 1 April 2016 5.04 22.89 - 31.93
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - = 2 =
Total comprehensive income for the year - 83,33 5 83,33
Corporate guarntee interest (refer note below) 3104 = 31.04
Balance as on 31 March 2017 40.08 106.42 - 146.50

Note: As per Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, the corporate guarntee given by the holding company to the banks in respect of the loans availed
by the Company qualifies as a ‘financial guarantee contract’. No payment is mdae by the Company fo its holding company and this is considered
as a deemed capital contribution by the holding company, since the guarantee has been provided by the holding company in its capacity &8s a

shareholder.
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Non-current lizbilities

Rs. in lakhs
Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

b Financial Liabilities

8.1 Borrowings
Secured
Term loans
from banks
- RBL Bank Limited (refer note 1) 4,900.00 2.404.00
4.900.00 2,404.00
Notes:

(i) Ratnakar Bank Limited

The loan from bank is secured by exclusive charge on cutrent assets of the Company and an unconditional and irrevocable corporate guaranice
of Sical Logistics Limited. The loan is repayable over 32 months including a moratorium period of 2 months. The interest rate as on 31 March
2017 is 12.45% (Previous vear:12.50%).

{ii) There are no defaults in the repayment of the principal loan and interest amounts with respect to the above loans.

(iii) The aggregate amount of long-term borrowings secured by personal guarantee and corporate guarntee of promoters amounts to Rs. 7,768
lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 4,000 lakhs)

Current liabilities
Rs. in lakhs
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

9 Financial Liabilities

9.1 Trade payables
- Dues to micto and small enterprises (refer note belaw) - -
- Dues to other creditors 211.70 49.60
211.70 49.60

Note: According to the information available with the Company, there are no dues payable to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the
“The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an
Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence
with its customers the Entrepreneur’s Memorandum Number as allocated after filling of the Memorandum, Further there are no dues payable to
micra and small scale industries (previous year: Rs Nil),

R, in lakhs
Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

9.2 Other financial liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt*
Term loans
from banks
- RBL Bank Limited 2,868.00 1,596.00
2,868.00 1,596.00

*The details of interest rate, repayment terms, nature and value of securities furnished are disclosed under note £.1.

Rs. in lakhs
As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

10 Other current liabilities

Dues to related parties

- Sical Logistics Limited (refer note 18) - 5,081.12
Others

Statutory remittances payable - 16.37

Creditors for expenses (refer note 18) 2.050.62 1,141.12

2,050.62 6,238.61
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Rs. in lakhs
11 Revenuef, i For the year ended For the year ended
sl iialel i b 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Sale of services

Income from logistics services 14.202.75 3,146.14
Taxes and Deductions
Less: Service tax {1.518.06) (223.68)
12,684.69 2,922.46
Rs. in lakhs
12 Other income For the year ended For the vear ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest income

Interest income on fixed deposits 43.46 3.79
Interest income on inter-corporate advances (refer note | 178.85 24.74
222.31 28.53
Rs. in lakhs
g For the year ended For the year ended
Cost of
W SRt 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Operational expenses 11.460.68 2,744.82
Supervision charges 209.56 50.81
Swachh Bharat Cess 62.38 8.02
11,732.62 2.803.65
Rs. in lakfs
14 Finance costs For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Interest expense

- Term loan 888.23 84.69

Interest on inter-corporate loan (refer note 18) 8805 9.77

Intcrest on inter-corporate guamntee (refer note 18) 31.04 9.04

Other borrowing costs 31.09 5.21

1.039.31 108.71

Rs. in lakhs
15 Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Repairs and maintenance

- others 7.20 -
Payment to auditor's
a, for audit 0.25 -
Filing fees - 0.0
Due diligence expenses - 0.16
Professional consultancy 0.55 0.05
Miscellaneous expenses 145 -
9.49 0.22
Rs. in lakhs
16 Income tax For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Current income tax:

In respect of the current period 34.63 2294

Deferred tax:
[n respect of the current period 742 (7.42)

Minimum Alternate Tax credit entitlement

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 42.05 15.52
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A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to
the income before income taxes is summarized below:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulais For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit before income taxes 125.58 3841
Enacted tax rates in India 33.06% 30.90%
Computed expected tax expense 41.52 11.87
Interest expense on tax paid after 31 Mareh 2017 0.47 1.41
Tax rate difference 0.06 224
Total income tax expense 42.08 15.52

The tax rates under Indian [ncome Tax Act, for the year ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 is 33.06%
30.9% respectively,

Deferred tax
Deferred tax refates to the following:

Rs. in fakhs
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Fair valuation of trade receivables (742) 7.42

Net deferred tax credit/ (expense) (7.42) 7.42

Particulars




Sical Saumya Mining Limited
Notes to the accounts

17

18

(i

(i)

(iii)

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following table sets forth the computation of hasic and diluted earnings per share:

(Figures in rupees except number of shares)

e Tar For the year ended For the vear ended
) 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit / (Loss) after taxation as per statement of profit and loss 83.53 22.89
Less: Dividends on shares and tax thereon = -
Net profit adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares for calculation of diluted
EPS 83.53 12.89
As at Asat
Fartoulurs 31 Mareh 2016 31 March 2015
MNumber of equity shares at the beginning of the year 10,000 10,000
Add: Weighted average number of equity shares issued during the year - -
Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted eamings per share 10,000 10,800
Earnings / (loss) per share:
Basic 835.30 22890
Diluted 835.30 22890
Related parties disclosures
List of related parties:
Name of Company Relationship
Holding Company & Group
Sical Logistics Limited Holding Company
Sical Tron Ore Terminals Limited Indian Subsidiary of Holding Company
Details of directors of the Company:
Name of personnel Designation
Mr Ram Mohan Director
Mr Kush S Desai Director
Mr. Sumith Kamath Director
Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Fellow Bokiiag Comipany Key management
Subsidiary personnel
For the year ended 31 March 2017
Receiving of services - 11,460.68 o
Loans and advance received 8,522,326 - -
Loans and advance taken - 10,773.51 -
Interest paid on inter-corporate guarniee - 31.04 =
[nterest income on inter-corporate advances 178,85 B -
Interest puid on inter-corporate loan - B8.95 -
Faor the year ended 31 March 2016
Receiving of services - 2.744.82 -
Loans and advance given 8,522.26 -
Loans and advance taken - 5,081.12 -
Interest paid on inter-corporale guarnice - 9.04 %
Interest income on inter-corporate advances 24.74 -
Interest paid on inter-corporate loan - 9.77 -
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(iv) Amount outstanding as at the balance sheet date:

Rs. in lakhs
. Fellow Key management
Particulars Subsidiary Holding Company Becaael
As at 31 March 2017
Other current habilities - e -
Creditors for expenses - 1,926.29 -
Other current financial assets - 5,692.39 -
As at 31 March 2016
Other current liabilities - 5,081.12 -
Creditors for expenses - 1,141,12 -
Other current financial assets 8,522 = e

Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets include advances, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits
that derive direetly from ils operations.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is o foresee the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance, The Company's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of each customer and the concentration of risk from the top few customers.

Credit risk

Credit risk 1 the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty fo a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal 1o the earrying value of the financial assets. The
objective of managing counterparty credit risk is 1o prevent losses in financial assets. The Company assesses the credit quality of the counterparties, faking into
account their financial position, past experience and ather factors, Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing
credit limits and continuously menitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business, On
account of adoption of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The expected credit loss model takes
mto account available external and internal credit risk factors and the Company's historical experience for customers,

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of revenues penerated from lop customer:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Mar 2017 31 Mar 2016
Revenue from top customer 12,684.69 292246

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as we generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic
credit rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availabil ity of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet obligations when due. The Company’s corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. Management
monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows, In addition, processes and
policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant finangial liabilities:

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Note As at 31 March 2017
Less than 1 year 1-2 years More than 2 years
Borrowings 9.1and 10.2 2,868.00 1,596.00 3,304.00
Trade payable 9.1 211.70 . -
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprise
three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market
risk primarily include borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the nisk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates,
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20 Financial instruments
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016 are as follows:
s, in lakhs

Carrving value Fair value

Particulars Note As at Asat As at Asg at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Financial Assets
Amortised cost

Trade receivables 2.1and 5.1 3,727.89 1,501 .44 3,727.89 1,501.44
Cash and cash equivalents 432 4,15 3.39 4,15 339
Other non-current financial assets 2.2 607.30 258.00 6007.30 258.00
Other current financial assets 4.3 573530 8,525.67 5,735.30 8.525.67
Total financial assets 10,074.64 10,288.50 10,074.64 10,288.50

Financial liabilitics
Amortised cost

Borrowings 9.1 and 102 7,768.00 4.000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00
Trade payables 9.1 211.70 49,60 49,60 49.60
Total financial liabilities 7,979.70 4,049.60 4,049.60 4,049.60

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, Other current and non-current financial assets, trade receivables and payables and borrowings
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the shori-term maturities of these instruments,

21 Disclosure on specified bank notes
During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated 31 March 2017
on the details of Specified Bank Notes (‘'SBN') held and transacted during the period from & November 2016 to 30 December 2016, the denomination wise
SBNs and other notes as per the natification is given below:

Rs.

Particulars SBNs* Other denomination Total
notes

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 S Z 3
(') Permitted receipts - = a
(-) Permitted payments = : 5
(-) Amount deposited in Banks - - 5
Closing cash in hand as on 30 December 2016 . = =

"For the purposes of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in the
Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number 5.0. 3407(E), dated the 8 November 2016,

3 The Company is primarily engaged in providing integrated logistics services in the mining arcas which is considered as single business segment in terms of
segment reporting as per Ind AS 108, There being no services rendered outside India there are no separate geographical segments to be reported on.

23 Corresponding figures for the previous year presented have been regrouped, where necessary, to conform to the current vear's classification.
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